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Vision
3 :‘S’

To become the complete

Solution Provider for
Sustainable Environment Through
Socially Responsible Development Projects

Mission
To work towards social and environmental 
development by including local communities, 
individuals and organisations in the management 
of essential services like drinking water, waste and 
energy through financially and socially sustainable 
projects.
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Hand in Hand Inclusive Development and Services (HHIDS) is a not-for-profit company registered under Section 8 of

the Indian Companies Act. HHIDS performs various socio-economic development interventions oriented towards

environmental sustainability. The company was established in 2008 to deal with the waste menace the community

and the environment face, and to create contemporary, affordable solutions to mitigate the effects of waste

through tactical applications. HHIDS specializes in three activities that underline the organization's interventions.

Hand In Hand Inclusive 
Development And Services 

HHIDS’ Municipal Solid Waste Management (MSWM) programme strives for maximum 

waste recovery through composting, recycling and reuse, and aims at minimizing 

wastes being dumped in landfills. At the helm is the “source segregation” concept, 

which acts as the pivot for MSWM project execution and sustainability. Source 

segregation provides a platform for active community participation, the base of the 

system. Besides, the project also offers continuous employment to individuals from 

socially and economically marginalized sections of society.  The long-term goal of 

the project is to reduce environmental degradation caused by unscientific handling 

of solid wastes combined with sustainable livelihood opportunities for people at the 

bottom of the pyramid. 

HHIDS' Municipal Solid Waste Management programme works with a unique model 

in partnership with local governments and communities to create an environmentally 

and economically sustainable system. Stakeholder participation is built into every 

stage of project implementation. The projects are materialized through the provision 

of spatial and monetary requirements by local government bodies, and community 

participation utilising source segregation of waste and nominal fee as remuneration. 

HHIDS with its experience in the arena provides project training and implementation.

Behaviour Change Communication (BCC) materials on waste management 

principles, coupled with awareness programmes and training & capacity building 

workshops also form an integral part of the programme.

HHIDS‘ latest intervention in the waste management sector is Faecal Sludge 

Management (FSM). With this new domain, HHIDS is now one of the rarest

integrated waste solution providers in the country.

Municipal Solid Waste Management Programme



Community Safe Drinking Water Programme

Water is fundamental for human survival. In many rural areas, access to water, let 

alone clean drinking water is an enigma to the local populace. To overcome this, 

HHIDS devised the “Community Safe Drinking Water” (CSDW) programme to satiate 

the water needs of the communities. The company has identified low-cost systems 

and a partnership model to ensure a sustainable source of clean drinking water. 

Installation of water purifiers (reverse osmosis process) with huge treatment capacity 

has helped many communities to address their drinking water issues. This initiative of 

providing cheap, clean drinking water has become a boon to many communities 

that were once forced to consume unhygienic drinking water due to lack of 

facilities. The CSDW units with various capacities are installed in local bodies, 

educational institutions, etc.,

Waste is a potential energy source and tapping that energy to feed communities' 

needs alleviates the stress on our environment to an extent. Alternative energy 

solution is the need of the hour and HHIDS stands firm on this front. Biodegradable 

waste is an energy source and bio-methanation is one of the means to capture the 

energy from waste. Through the installation of biogas plants, HHIDS has succeeded 

in harnessing the energy in the form of biogas and provides cheap, alternate energy 

to various communities. The energy obtained is either used as electricity or as 

cooking fuel based on the need of the community. In this manner, communities are 

able to reduce their carbon footprints, leading to greenhouse gas mitigation. The 

bio-methanation plants with various capacities are installed in local bodies, 

educational institutions, corporates, etc.,

Waste to Energy Programme 

E-Waste Management Programme

Hand in Hand India is registered as a public charitable trust in 2002 and the 

organization has a goal of promoting job creation for the people at the bottom of the 

pyramid. The organization strongly believes that poverty is multidimensional, and it 

addresses the issues through an integrated 5 pillar programme covering areas of 

education, health, job creation and women empowerment, environment and skill 

development. Hand in Hand India works in close partnership with State and Central 

Governments, Corporates and Communities to ensure effective and sustainable 

solutions.

With humble beginnings in the Indian state of Tamil Nadu, Hand in Hand India today 

operates in 16 states namely Karnataka, Tamil Nadu, Madhya Pradesh, Odisha, 

Maharashtra, Rajasthan, Punjab, West Bengal, Puducherry, Andhra Pradesh, Uttar 

Pradesh, Telangana, Punjab, Bihar, Chhattisgarh and Gujarat.

The organization has received SR2A for our Social Performance & Responsible Finance 

from CRISIL. The committed workforce of over 6000 paid employees and 67,000+ 

volunteers are led by a professional and well-experienced Management Team 

handpicked from various sectors.
www.hihindia.org

Hand in Hand Inclusive Development and Services is a group entity of Hand in Hand 

India.

Hand in Hand India 

Concerned about the abundance of e-waste and its hazardous effects on the 

environment, Hand in Hand Inclusive Development and Services (HHIDS) ventured into 

e-waste management. HHIDS partnered with Karo Sambhav, an authorized e-waste 

Producer Responsibility Organization (PRO) to implement the e-waste management 

project. HHIDS has conceived an integrated approach in this sector, incorporating an 

authorized collection system, simultaneously with awareness programmes targeting 

bulk waste generators and training programmes for waste handlers, which will give 

the project an edge in the ever-growing e-waste market. 

E-waste is one of the fastest-growing segments in the municipal solid waste stream, 

but only 15-20 percent of all the waste is recycled, as per the UN reports. The rest of 

the e-waste is disposed of either through burning or at dumpsites. India is the fifth 

largest e-waste producer in the world. Meanwhile, 95 percent of the e-waste is 

processed by the unskilled informal sector.
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Message from our 
Managing Director

Let me start with my prayers that all of you and your 

families continue to remain safe and healthy. 

Covid-19 pandemic has changed the ecosystem of 

the social and business sector.  As an organization 

working in grass root level, we should prepare 

ourselves to execute our tasks taking maximum 

precaution minimizing risk. 

Financial year 2019-20 was a year in which 

Company has invested in sharpening its strategy and 

building its capabilities. Organization has 

commenced a series of comprehensive steps to 

address diverse aspects of the business and today, 

we are pleased to note that the outcomes of these 

initiatives have been visible in strong operational 

performance. We are committed to take the lead in 

this transition and work with other partners in the 

ecosystem to help create a viable environment to 

drive growth through diversification. Our team has 

shaped up well with new portfolios and has become 

a robust team. We aim to build healthier team that 

could absorb new technologies, customize them to 

suit Indian ecosystem and harvest the full potential of 

the technological improvement.

2019-20 has been a significant year with 

mentionable accomplishments, financially as well as 

steadfast dedication to help local bodies, 

communities and lives of our fellow citizens we touch 

upon. It is because of the devoted team we have, 

such accomplishment been made possible. This gives 

confidence that not only we will sail through this difficult 

period but will emerge out successful at the end.

From an operational performance perspective, the 

year 2019-20has been an eventful year. We diversified 

well into Skill Training through CSR support from ACC, 

Robotic Scavenging initiative through ONGC, 

strengthened our water security and green energy 

verticals. We are experimenting with large corporation 

hopefully will fructify next year.The fact that our focus 

to preserve the environment and help communities to 

thrive went hand in hand with our pursuit of better 

business opportunities.

While appreciating the fact that waste management 

genre has adopted all our principles and 

methodologies, nevertheless, we have raised our bar 

on innovative approaches. We support new institutions 

interested in managing their waste scientifically like 

IIT Hyderabad even if requires development of 

infrastructure.  Our behavioral change communication 

has evolved into challenging citizens to take up 

activities we were advocating

We moved into new territories like NOIDA, Odisha and 

Gujarat through CSR support, while expanding in 

Hyderabad through competitive bidding.

On forward looking indications for 2020-21, more 

diversification venturing into large biogas plants with 

bottling facility, carbon trading, upskilling of youth and 

women along with significant growth in e-waste 

processing are being considered. We remain optimistic 

about the long-term growth in line with our 

commitment to the society. We are confident that our 

team shall facilitate necessary community 

interventions.

I place herewith my earnest thanks to our Chairperson, 

Dr. Kalpana Sankar, who is always our guiding factor. 

We dedicate our commitment in sharing the vision of 

our chairperson herewith. We value the guidance 

given by our Chairperson and board members, 

indebted by the support extended to develop this 

organization and appreciate the efforts taken to 

provide a great working environment. 

I express my sincere gratitude to the team, our staff 

members, for taking up every single challenge with 

high energies which the bottom line reflects. The 

tremendous effort and generosity of the spirit from 
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everyone involved in this astonishing work requires 

special mention

We're grateful to our CSR partners, who help us in 

creating new sensations and support our cause by 

standing along with us

I also thank all Government Officials, Elected 

Representatives, Press Personnel, Volunteers and our 

Vendors in supporting us in every possible way.  

Without their support we would not have moved in 

such greater pace.

Mr. N. Amuthasekaran
Managing Director 
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Cultivated over the years, we have integrated the 

ability, far from being fazed by disruptions, we see 

every crisis – every challenge as an opportunity.  

Were mind ourselves that our journey is still on and 

we have greater goals to accomplish in the 

forthcoming years.  We reboot, reinvent and 

reignite endeavoring to excel in all activities we 

undertake. Putting our employees first, we will work 

together to lift up our communities. Together, let's 

think new, do better, dream bigger and eventually 

emerge resilient



Mr. Wadhwa holds a Masters in Economic Statistics from 

Delhi School of Economics. He is a Certified Associate of 

Indian Institute of Bankers, Mumbai. 

He was formerly a Chief General Manager with NABARD, 

Head Office and the Managing Director at Agricultural 

Finance Corporation. He is a Senior Consultant on 

Agriculture and Rural Development, Rural Finance, Rural 

Cooperatives, Microfinance, Micro Enterprise Development, 

Livelihood, Poverty Reduction, and his services are availed 

by UNDP, UNOPS, IFAD, AFDB, World Bank, DFID, SDC, 

Government of India, Banks and NGOs. Besides his intensive 

experience across many states of India, 

Mr. Wadhwa has also worked in Kenya, Malawi, Bhutan, 

Kyrgyzstan, Vietnam, Kazakhstan, Sierra Leone, Myanmar 

and Macedonia.
Mr. Subhash Chandra Wadhwa
Director

Dr. Sankar has a double doctorate with a Ph.D. in nuclear 

physics and gender studies. She is also the co-founder of 

Hand in Hand India, Dr. Sankar has been involved in the 

women’s self-help group movement in Tamil Nadu for over 

two decades. She has been a consultant with UNOPS, 

UNDP, Christian Aid and Wetlands International on Gender 

and Microfinance. 

She has authored several books on child labour, 

microfinance and women’s empowerment. Dr. Sankar was 

honoured with the ‘Nari Shakti Puraskar 2016’ instituted by 

the Ministry of Women and Development, Government of 
thIndia on International Women’s Day (March 8 , 2017) for her 

contribution to the empowerment of vulnerable and 

marginalized women.

 Dr. Kalpana Sankar
Chairperson

Mr. Mani holds a Bachelor’s degree in Physics and Law.

He has 24 Years of practice in property rights and has 

specialized in Arbitration & Conciliation Proceedings, 

Trademark, Civil Suits, among other areas of expertise, on 

the Original Side of the Madras High Court. He has done 

Trademark branding for several leading brands including 

Milka Group of Companies, Saravana Stores, Krish Srikkanth, 

and Milkyway. He is a regular speaker in seminars 

conducted by ICAI, ICSI and the University of Madras. He 

has attended International Conferences in Brussels, Berlin 

and Kathmandu representing the Indian Liberal Group, 

India.

Mr. N. Amuthasekaran is a postgraduate in Sociology. 

He started his development career with Vivekananda 

Kendra, a social service organisation based in 

Kanyakumari, India. His experience spans grassroots action, 

education, and monitoring and evaluation.

Mr. Nachiappan has extensive project experience in 

watershed management, natural resource development, 

rural development and promotion of renewable energy 

such as biogas, solar energy and wind energy in rural areas. 

He has also monitored several NGO projects for the Ministry 

of Rural Development, Government of India.

Mr. N. Amuthasekaran
Managing Director

Mr. Harishankar Mani
Director

Board of Directors
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Dear Members,

Your Directors have great pleasure in presenting the BOARD’S REPORT of your Company along with the Audited 
stFinancial Statements for the year ended 31  March, 2020 and the Auditor’s Report thereon.

Financial Results

                  Amount in (Rs.)

PARTICULARS        2019-2020           2018-19

Revenue from Operations  21,27,99,509   18,65,53,206

Total Expenditure   20,56,22,175   17,83,88,283

Profit/(Loss) before tax        71,77,334        81,64,923

Less : Current Tax    -    -

Less : Deferred Tax    -    -

Profit/(Loss) after Tax        71,77,334        81,64,923

Balance b/f from the previous year  -    -

Balance c/f to Balance Sheet       71,77,334        81,64,923

Year in Retrospect:

The Company earned revenue from operation of 

Rs. 21.28 Crores during the financial year 2019-20 

against previous year revenue of Rs. 18.65 Crores in 

2018-19. The current year revenue got increased by 

Rs. 2.62 Crores.

State of Company's Affairs

The Company is engaged in the business of 

charitable activities in Solid Waste Management, 

Community Managed Drinking Water & Bio-Gas 

during the year. The Company endorsed smooth 

operations during the Covid Lockdown supporting 

the government institution.

Share Capital

The paid-up capital of the Company of 31st March, 

2020 stood at Rs. 31,00,000/- (Rupees Thirty-One 

Lakhs only). There was no allotment of equity shares 

during the year under review.

Events subsequent to the date of financial 

statements;

There were no material changes or commitments 

affecting the financial position of the Company 

which have occurred between the end of the 

financial year of the Company to which the financial 

statements relate and the date of this report.

Transfer to Reserves

During the year under review, the Company has 

transferred an amount of Rs. 71,77,334/- to Reserves 

of the Company.

Change in nature of business:

There was a change in the nature of business of the 

Company during the financial year.

Directors

As per the provisions of Section 152 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 Mr. Subhash Chandra 

Wadliwa (DIN: 01415250) is liable to retire by rotation 

and has offered himself for re¬appointment.

Dr. Natarajan Jeyaseelan resigned from the Board 
theffective from 10  June 2019. There were no other 

changes in the Board of Directors during the period 

under review.

The Directors on the Board are It (Mrs.) Kalpana Sank, 

Chairperson, Mr. Harishankar Mani, 

Mr. Subhash Chandra Wadhwa and 

Mr. Amuthasekaran Nachiyappan, Managing 

Director.

Meetings held during the relevant Financial Year :

The Board of Directors of the Company duly met 2 

(Two) times during the year 2018-19.

Directors Report

Details of Meetings attended by each Director for the Financial Year 2019-2020

  BOARD MEETINGS              GENERAL MEETINGS

April 2019-September 2019 18.09.2019                AGM : 30-09-2018

October 2019-March 2020 24.03.2020    -

TOTAL NUMBER OF MEETINGS

HELD DURING THE FINANCIAL

YEAR 2019-2020  2    1

Details of Meetings held during the Financial Year 2019-2020:

DIRECTORS DIN
NUMBER OF BOARD 

MEETINGS ATTENDED

NUMBER OF GENERAL 

MEETING ATTENDED

Mr. Subhash Chandra Wadhwa 01415250 1   0

Dr. (Mrs.) Kalpana Sankar 01926545 2   1

Mr. Harishankar Mani   02723829 1   0

Mr. Amuthasekaran Nachiappan 03084046 2   1

The Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards, viz., SS-1 and SS-2, as issued by the Institute 

of Company Secretaries of India, from time to time.

Deposits:

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the 

public during the year under review.

Annual Return

In terms of section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of 

the Companies Act, 2013, a copy of the annual return 

is available on the website of the Company on the 

following link:

https://hhids.org/corporate-information/#Annual-

Returns

As on the date of signing this Board’s Report, the 

above link has the annual return for the year 2019. The 

annual return for the year 2020 shall be available on 

the same link upon holding of the ensuing Annual 

General Meeting, since, in terms of section 92(1) read 

with Rule 11(1) of the Companies (Management and 

Administration) Rules, 2014, the annual return in Form 

No. MGT-7 will be possible to prepare only after the 

said annual general meeting.

Extract of annual return:

The extract of the annual return in Form MGT-9 is 

annexed (as Annexure – I) and forms part of this report.

Particulars of Monies received from Director of the 

Company and relative of Director of Private Company

During the year under review, the Company has not 

received monies from Directors of the Company or 

from relatives of Directors.

Auditors:

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, M/s. 

SNB Associates, Chartered Accountants, Chennai 

(having Firm Registration October: 015682N) were 

appointed at 11th AGM as Statutory Auditors of the 

Company for another term of 5 consecutive financial 

years till the conclusion of the 16th AGM of the 

Company to be held in the year 2024, without requiring 

any ratification from the members at any subsequent 

Annual General Meetings during the current term of 

their appointment, to audit the accounts of the 

Company, on such remuneration as may be mutually 

agreed between the Board of Directors of the 

Company and the Auditors.
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Explanation or comments by the Board on every 

qualification, reservation, adverse remark or 

disclaimer made by the auditor:

No such explanation or comment is required since 

there are no qualifications, reservations, adverse 

remarks or disclaimer made by the auditor.

Holding and Subsidiary Company:

The Company does not have any holding or 

subsidiary Company as at 31st March 2020.

Risk management policy:

The Company has not developed or implemented 

any risk management policy. In the opinion of the 

Board, there are no elements of risk which may 

threaten the existence of the Company. 

Contracts / arrangements with related parties:

The particulars of contracts or arrangements with 

related parties in Form AOC-2 (as Annexure – II) is 

annexed and forms part of this report.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption & 

Foreign Exchange Earnings outgo:

A. Details of Conservation of Energy: Not applicable

Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy

Steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate 

sources of energy

Capital investment on energy conservation 

equipment

B. Technology Absorption: Not applicable

(i) Efforts made towards technology absorption: 

(ii) Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts: 

(iii) In case of imported technology (imported during 

the last 3 years reckoned from the beginning of the 

financial year): 

(a) Details of technology imported: 

(b) Year of import: 

(c) Whether the technology been fully absorbed: 

(d) If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has 

not taken place, and the reasons thereof: 

(iv) Expenditure incurred on Research and 

Development:

The Company has not incurred any cost towards 

undertaking R&D Activity during the period under 

review.

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo: 

Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows 

during the year: Nil

Foreign Exchange outgo during the year in terms of actual 

outflows: Nil

Material orders:

There were no significant and material orders passed by 

the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going 

concern status and Company’s operations in future.

Internal financial controls:

The Company has adequate internal financial controls 

with reference to the Financial statements.

Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments:

The Company has duly complied with the provisions of 

Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.  The Company 

has not granted any loans, made any investments, given 

guarantees or extended any security during the financial 

year.

Maintenance of cost records and Applicability of cost 

audit 

The Company is not required to maintain cost records as 

provided under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. Hence, the provisions of the Cost 

Audit are also not applicable to the Company.

Directors’ Responsibility statement:

Your Directors’ confirm:

a) that in the preparation of the Annual Accounts the 

applicable Accounting Standards have been followed 

along with proper explanation in relation to material 

departures.

b) that the Directors had selected such accounting 

policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 

prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of 

affairs of the company at the end of the financial year 

and the profit/ loss of the company for that year.

c) that the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care 

for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013 for safeguarding the assets of the company and for 

preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

d) that the Directors have prepared the annual Accounts 

on a going concern basis.

e) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure 

compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 

that such systems were adequate and operating 

effectively.

Fraud reported by Auditor:

The Auditor has not reported any fraud under sub-section 12 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Maintenance of books of account and other relevant books and papers in electronic form

The Company is maintaining books of accounts and other relevant books and papers in electronic form and the 

place of maintenance of computer servers (Storing Accounting Data) is located at New No. 33, Old No. 14, 48th 

Street, 9th Avenue, Ashok Nagar, Chennai – 600083, Phone No. 044-43413200.

a. the name of the service provider    TALLY

b. the internet protocol address of

 service provider     NIL

c. the location of the service provider 

 (wherever applicable)    Chennai

d. where the books of account and 

 other books and papers are maintained   NIL

 on cloud, such address as provided by 

 the service provider

Details regarding Service Provider  

Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirement of the Sexual Harassment of 

Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has 

been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, 

temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy.

The following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed off during the year 2019-20.

No. of Complaints received    : Nil

No. of Complaints disposed   : Nil

Acknowledgement:

Your Directors thank the Company’s investors, vendors, donors and bankers for their continued support during the year.

By order of the Board

            For M/s. HAND IN HAND INCLUSIVE DEVELOPMENT AND SERVICES

                Sd...

Place : Chennai        

Date : 28.12.2020       

Annexure - I - Extract of the annual return in Form MGT-9

Annexure - II - Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties in Form AOC-2

Dr. Kalpana Sankar
Chairperson

DIN:01926545
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Our Impact

5,72,893 5,72,893 5,72,893 
Households Reached 

1,83,5431,83,5431,83,543
Ongoing Households

3,89,3503,89,3503,89,350
Handed over households

4,0644,0644,064
Waste handled 
per month

343434
Ongoing Projects

7,2737,2737,273
No.of Volunteers

8,8938,8938,893
No. of Green Friends 
trained

989898
Total no. Projects 
Handled

thHHIDS ensures pristine environment in Mamallapuram, a historical town filled with 7  century 

monuments declared as World Heritage Sites by UNESCO.

With an intervention that spans more than a decade, the town has now been developed into a 

model par excellence in Municipal Solid Waste Management.

The ’Recycle for Life’ project implemented in the town is the exemplar of HHIDS interventions in the 

waste management sphere, and proves to be a scalable, sustainable model replicated in various 

parts of the country. 
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Making of a Model Village at Noida Township

Harola, one of the urban villages is located in Sector 

5 of Noida Township, Gautam Buddha Nagar 

District, Uttar Pradesh. This highly dense urban 

settlement mostly houses labour force migrated 

from different parts of the country to seek a 

livelihood in the nearby city of Noida. Harola is 

famous for its markets (Bazaar) - Sharma Market, 

Harola market and Hanuman market, heavily 

populated by textile and electrical shops. 

HHIDS entered into a partnership with HCL 

Foundation (HCLF) and the Noida authority in July 

2019 towards developing a Model Village at Harola, 

a key objective of the Clean Noida Initiative.  As 

part of this prestigious initiative, HCLF carries out 

various works and services to implement effective 

Municipal Solid Waste Management (MSWM) in 

Noida city. The Clean Noida initiative aims to 

transform the city into a litter and waste-free region, 

covering all Residential Welfare Associations and 

urban villages. The major focus areas of the project 

are capacity building of relevant stakeholders, 

intensive behaviour change campaigns, awareness 

drives and technological solutions. 

To transform Harola into a model village, HHIDS 

started from scratch; right from conducting surveys 

to gathering information on the number of 

households, number of shops, number of streets, 

drainage lines, the quantum of waste generated, 

existing waste collection systems etc. A detailed map 

with all the relevant information to chart out a plan for 

executing MSWM operations at Harola Urban Village 

was prepared. A waste quantification study using a 

random sampling method conducted at Harola 

helped HHIDS to arrive at the average waste 

generation by the households and commercials.

Designing and procurement of vehicles for waste 

collection and drainage cleaning were carried out 

simultaneously followed by mobilisation of Green 

Friends and training on MSWM concepts and 

operations.  Street cleaning with tricycles and 

drainage cleaning with pushcarts initiated.  Rather 

than opting for a conventional method of drainage 

cleaning, a specially designed drainage collection 

vehicle, a pushcart fitted with a filtration compartment 

was conceptualised and designed; thus making the 

drainage cleaning operation simpler and handling of 

silt easier.

The model urban village MSWM project caters to 

around 20615 households and 2666 commercials in an 

area of 0.25 sq.km. Prior to the commencement of 

door-to-door waste collection, to ensure an effective 

and efficient MSWM system at the Harola village, 

several Behaviour Change Communications (BCC) 

activities such as door-to-door campaigns, puppet 

shows, street plays and rallies and competitions for 

school children were conducted towards building 

awareness.  

As part of the Clean Noida Initiative, commercials 

were provided with dustbins for storing their waste. 

Due to the specific geography and placement of 

residential apartments, the waste collection system 

had to undergo several trial runs before it zeroed in 

on a complete process plan for collection and 

transfer of waste to the transit points.  The formulated 

plan for SWM was put forth in action from January 

2020 onwards. A Green Friend on average collects 

waste from about 790 households in a day. 

The project now engages 42 Green Friends and 

ensures street cleaning and door-to-door waste 

collection from households and commercials. The 

Harola Urban Village generates around 6 to 7 MT 

waste every day, which is collected and 

transferred to the transit point and eventually, 

removed by the Noida Authority. To address the 

flaws and to bring continuous improvement to the 

project, a system for collecting feedback from the 

residents is also put in place, which will also 

contribute to making a Model Urban Village – 

Harola!
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Campus Waste Management Project at IIT Hyderabad

Indian Institute of Technology, Hyderabad (IIT-H) is 

one among the second generation of IITs started by 

the Govt. of India. Located in the state of 

Telangana, the campus sprawls across 640 acres 

with state of art facilities. Since 2012-13, IIT-H has 

been striving hard to make every step a green 

initiative and has steered various eco-friendly and 

recycling programmes.  A green office functions in 

the campus to promote and encourage Reduce, 

Recycle, Reuse and Turn off concepts, and to 

implement various activities that will contribute 

towards eco-friendly and sustainable practices at 

IIT-H. 

In March 2020, HHIDS was awarded the Municipal 

Solid Waste Management Project at this prestigious 

institute.  This is the second campus waste 

management project of HHIDS, following the 

footsteps of a similar project at SRM University near 

Chennai. 

The three-year project aims at establishing a 

sustainable waste management set up at the IIT-H 

campus involving door to door waste collection, 

transportation, processing of waste, setting up of 

Resource Recovery Park, a Biogas unit to handle the 

food waste from canteens and households and an 

incineration plant to handle the inert and other 

mixed waste.  The project caters to a population of 

about 3500, and handles wastes of about 8 - 10 MT 

from its four academic buildings, residential quarters 

with 255 households, 10 student hostels, central mess, 

canteen, Sewage Treatment Plant (STP) and the 

campus vegetation. The project engages eight Green 

friends and two supervisory staff.

With the zero-waste concept in place, plans have 

been formulated to treat different types of waste 

generated within the campus. With the age-old 

composting method put in place to treat organic 

waste, and recyclable waste segregated category 

wise and sent to local recyclers, the task of treating 

food waste from canteen and slurry from the in-house 

STP will be managed by introducing a biogas unit soon 

to treat food waste and slurry from STP added to the 

composting process. 

Compost produced is used in campus landscape and 

vegetation maintenance. The Biogas unit, once 

initiated will aid in fuelling the cooking in the central 

mess and the canteen. An incineration unit to treat 

domestic hazardous waste within the campus itself is 

under deliberation to achieve the zero-waste 

concept.

Behaviour Change Communication (BCC) activities 

are part of the MSWM system established by HHIDS in 

the campus to sensitize the community within the 

institute on MSWM and the importance of 

stakeholder contribution in fighting climate change. 

Amid COVID-19 pandemic uncertainties, setting up 

a workforce at the IIT-H campus was quite 

challenging.  The solid waste management 

committee of IIT-H was supportive and helped HHIDS 

in the initial stage.  Now, the project is up and 

running with a full workforce in the quest to achieve 

a sustainable, zero-waste campus.
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Behaviour Change Communication Project – Bargarh Municipality

With the support of Associated Cement Companies 

(ACC) Trust, HHIDS launched the Behaviour Change 

Communication (BCC) project on August 1, 2019.  

This is the third project implemented in association 

with ACC Trust.  Unlike the earlier projects at 

Madukkarai, Coimbatore District, Tamil Nadu and 

Jamul Nagar Palika, Chhattisgarh wherein, the core 

objective was to establish a system for Municipal 

Solid Waste Management (MSWM), this unique 

project focuses on BCC activities.  The project 

emphasizes building awareness on MSWM, 

segregation of waste at source, make people 

cognizant of the importance of community 

contribution in selected Wards of Bargarh 

Municipality, covering 5289 households. 

Bargarh Municipality, located in the Bargarh district 

of Odisha has a population of about 87500, with 

25,000 households in 19 wards. Though there is an 

established system for door-to-door waste 

collection, street cleaning, drainage cleaning, 

dustbin clearance etc., there was a lack of scientific 

approach in handling the Municipal Solid Waste as 

the entire collected waste finds its way to the dump 

yard untreated. The BCC project under ACC's CSR 

was conceptualised as a pilot to educate the 

community on MSWM concepts and support the 

Municipality's initiative of a scientifically established 

MSWM system with community participation. 

The project at Bargarh Municipality uses BCC as a 

strategic tool to interact with communities and 

individuals to address various societal problems, to 

develop customised messages and approaches 

through a variety of communication channels to bring 

about positive behaviours, promote and sustain 

individual, community and societal behavioural 

change.  Various modes like one to one 

communication, one to group communication, using 

mass media, folk performances etc., are performed to 

disseminate information on specific theme lines.

Various BCC activities such as door-to-door 

campaigns, demonstration programme on 

segregating waste at source to school students and 

self-help groups, street plays, puppet shows, rallies, 

mass cleanings, backyard composting demonstrations 

etc., are conducted to create awareness among the 

public regarding MSWM, thereby changing the 

behaviour of the community. Rally programs involving 

various stakeholders, painting and drawing 

competitions for school children are also conducted 

on national observation days.

Orientation on safety and training sessions on 

FSTP operations shall make these workers brisk at 

their work at FSTP. The regular health check with 

continued monitoring and follow-ups for FSTP & 

RRP workers and their families shall help them 

keep diseases at bay. With all the awareness 

sessions, demonstrations, addressing the gaps, 

institutional strengthening along with the 

required infrastructure development, the project 

looks forward to realizing a sensitized community 

with improved sanitation practices and utilization 

of FSTP.
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Bulk Waste Management Project at Arihant Escapade Flats, Chennai

Chennai city lacks the adequate in-house expertise 

to handle solid waste generated by the Bulk Waste 

Generators (BWG) such as markets, gated 

communities, associations, restaurants, hotels, etc., 

as prescribed under the Municipal Solid Waste 

Management Rules 2016. It is mandatory for the 

BWG to facilitate collection of segregated waste in 

separate streams, hand over recyclable material to 

authorised waste pickers/recyclers.  As per the 

Rules, the biodegradable waste must be processed 

via composting or bio-methanation within their 

premises and the domestic hazardous waste must 

be handed over to the local body. This task has 

been challenging and led to substantial sub-

optimization of waste conversion and increase in 

the waste disposed at the dump yard in the city. 

To combat this challenge, Greater Chennai 

Corporation (GCC) decided to impanel waste 

processing Agencies with repute and expertise in 

Bulk Waste Management (BWM).  The empaneled 

list of service providers was published in the GCC 

official portal, for public access, enabling hassle-

free service provider-consumer partnerships.

HHIDS has recently been empaneled as BWM 

Operator among other few by the Greater Chennai 

Corporation to handle BWGs in Chennai city. In 

October 2019, the Bulk Waste Management project 

was launched in Arihant Towers, Thoraipakkam. The 

project handles around 300 kg of waste per day from 

250 households.  The organic or biodegradable 

fraction of about 150 kg is taken to Greater Chennai 

Corporation's Micro Composting Centre (MCC) at 

Kannagi Nagar for processing to produce quality 

compost. Recyclable waste is sent to local recyclers 

for further treatment. 

This new initiative opens the window to concentrate 

specifically on Bulk Waste Generators, a decentralized 

approach to targeting waste generators and mitigate 

waste generation and dumping. 

MSWM Project - Moraiya, Ahmedabad, Gujarat

Moraiya is a remote village in Sanand Taluka in 

Ahmadabad District of Gujarat State. It is located 26 

km towards the west of District headquarters in 

Ahmedabad. The village has around 1500 

households and generates around 6MT waste every 

month.  HHIDS initiated its solid waste management 

intervention in the village on 02nd January, 2020 in 

partnership with the Moraiya village panchayat.  

M/s. PPG Asian Paints Pvt. Ltd sponsored 6 tricycles 

and 20 barrels through their Sustainable Village 

Upliftment Programme (SVUP) project in association 

with Hand in Hand India, our parent organization, 

focusing on women empowerment, education, skill 

development and Behavior Change 

Communication activities in solid waste 

management.

Moraiya, with a population of approximately 7500 

people including the migrants who serve at the 

Gujarat Industrial development corporation (GIDC) 

factories as inhabitants, generate a good volume of 

waste, though gets collected on a regular basis, 

lacked a scientific approach to the waste 

treatment process. The various behavioral change 

communication activities carried out at Moraiya 

through the SVUP project like installation of street 

bins, folk performances like street play, bhavai, 

puppet shows helped us to bring a general 

awareness on building concepts of managing waste 

and its proper disposal amongst the villagers.  

Behavioral change initiatives on solid waste 

management undertaken as part of the SVUP project 

paved the way for introducing the MSWM model of 

HHIDS to the Local administrative official of Moraiya 

Village Panchayat. Having convinced about our 

model MSWM interventions in various town 

panchayats, Nagar Palikas and corporations, the 

Moraiya village panchayat entered into a contract 

with HHIDS to establish a proper waste management 

system for 1500 households.  

Through the project, a proper system for door-to-door 

waste collection, transportation, processing and 

disposal has been established at Moraiya village 

panchayat.  Presently, the collected garbage is taken 

to the allocated area, located at 7km from central 

Moraiya, for further segregation and processing. The 

wet waste is formed to windrows and recyclables are 

sorted and baled.  While the compost harvested is 

handed over to the panchayat, the recyclables stored 

are sold to recyclers and the revenue is shared 

amongst the Green Friends. 
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MSWM intervention at Mudukulathur Town Panchayat

Mudukulathur, a first grade Town Panchayat in the 

Ramanathapuram district of the Indian state of 

Tamil Nadu has a population of 14789 Nos as per 

the 2011 census and is spread over an area of 23.10 

sq.km. The town panchayat consists of 15 Wards 

with 5287 households and 787 shops.

It was during one of the exposure visits, the 

Executive Officers and other government officials 

from various local bodies of the Ramanathapuram 

District witnessed the impressive solid waste 

management operations set up at the Karunguzhi 

Waste Management Facility situated at the 

Chengalpattu District of Tamil Nadu state.  The 

MSWM operations along with the Faecal Sludge 

Treatment Plant and the awareness programmes 

carried out as part of Behavioural Change 

Communication impressed the concerned officials 

and it paved the way in inviting HHIDS for handling 

the MSWM operations at Mudukulathur Town 

Panchayat. Subsequently, HHIDS started its MSWM 

operations at the Mudukulathur Town Panchayat in 

March 2020.

Mudukulathur town has a Resource Recovery Park 

and there exists a system for door-to-door waste 

collection and processing.  Here, all the wastes are 

collected together from the households and 

dustbins.  The segregation of waste at the source was 

almost nil.  The new MSWM project initiated at the 

town panchayat aims to establish a proper system for 

solid waste management by ensuring that awareness 

is built amongst the community members on source 

segregation.  The various components of SWM such as 

regular waste collection, transportation and 

processing of waste shall be done in a scientific 

manner, and promote a healthy and safe 

environment for the community.  

The Mudukulathur MSWM project engages 31 Green 

Friends and handles about 1-1.25MT of waste per day. 

Around 0.9 MT of organic waste is introduced to 

composting process using the Windrow method and 

the recycled waste is stored and sent to recyclers for 

further processing.  The project diverts around 75 

percent of waste from reaching the landfill. 

MSWM Project at Chengam Town Panchayat

Chengam is a small town situated in the 

Tiruvannamalai District of Tamilnadu. Spread over 

an area of 8 sq.km, the town has 18 wards with 6500 

households and 500 shops. The MSWM operations at 

Chengam Town Panchayat were officially 

commenced on 1st July 2019.  

Beyond MSWM operations, the project caters to 

drainage cleaning, water supply and miscellaneous 

works too. While 30 Green Friends with 28 pushcarts 

and one tractor attend to door-to-door waste 

collection, segregation of waste, transportation 

etc., 15 Green Friends handle drainage cleaning.  

The Resource Recovery Park has the necessary 

machinery for crushing, baling of recyclables and a 

sieving machine to sieve the compost to remove 

impurities.

The project handles around 2 to 2.5 MT waste per 

day, with 1.5 MT biodegradable waste, a maximum 

of 0.5MT recyclable waste and 0.4 to 0.6 MT 

domestic hazardous waste. The project diverts 

around 730 MT of waste from reaching the landfills 

in a year.
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Hand in Hand Inclusive Development and Services 

(HHIDS) has been an expert solution provider for a 

sustainable environment through socially 

responsible Municipal Solid Waste Management 

and Waste to Energy projects, and has managed to 

leave its footprints across 10 states in India. HHIDS 

also has successfully implemented100+ community 

safe drinking water projects in partnership with 

government bodies and CSR donors. 

By going beyond just providing safe drinking water, 

HHIDS decided to address the current pressing issue 

of water security for the people at large. One such 

project kick-started this year for realizing this vision is 

“Building Water Security for Green Rameswaram”. 
The project, funded by National Stock Exchange 

Foundation (NSEF) in CSR mode, envisages building 

water security for the people of Rameswaram Island 

in Ramanathapuram District (One of the 

Aspirational districts as listed by NITI AAYOG) of 

Tamil Nadu.

The project objectives are to increase the access of 

potable water to the community, prevent 

contamination of water sources and bring in a 

marked change in the behavior of people with 

respect to usage of water. Under the Water Security 

Project, to improve potable water access, various 

Water Security Project funded by NSEF

interventions such as building community safe drinking 

water plants, rainwater harvesting structures at 

community buildings and for a individuals, and 

groundwater recharging structures and soak pits are 

planned and implemented. 

Few MSWM interventions such as setting up of biogas 

plants for household clusters and schools, community 

vermicomposting units, and setting up kitchen garden 

come as a few of the key project deliverables.  

Behavior Change Communication forms an integral 

part of the project, as this helps in changing people's 

attitude towards healthy practices in the usage of 

water and its conservation.

Through its components, the project envisions  

transforming the lives of about 38,000 people directly 

and about 1,50,000 people indirectly. For long-lasting 

impact, the project also works towards strengthening 

of institutional mechanisms by creating a linkage 

between the community and the government bodies. 

Robotic Scavenging Project

Manual scavenging continues unabated in India 

despite stringent provisions in the law, which came 

in 2013.  The very existence of manual cleaning of 

sewers, septic tanks and manholes in our country, 

along with the alarming death rate among these 

workers, is an open secret and the people who are 

involved in the practice are driven by class, caste 

and income divides. The year 2019 saw a big surge 

in the number of deaths that occurred while 

engaging in manual scavenging work.  Around 110 

workers died which is again 68% high than the 

previous year.

As per Safai Karmachari Andolan (Govt. of India), 

one sanitary worker dies every 5th day due to this 

inhuman practice. An Indian Express study on the 

subject concluded that since 2011, more than 

120,000 conservancy workers have died due to this 

illegal and prevalent practice.  The life expectancy 

of conservancy workers, 49, is much lower 

compared to the average life expectancy of 65 in 

the country.

With funding support from the Oil and Natural Gas 

Corporation (ONGC), HHIDS decided to address the 

issue of manual scavenging by providing an 

innovative technological solution to eradicate 

manual scavenging. GenRobotics, a technological 

innovator's recent creation Bandicoot is a globally 

patented robotic machine designed to clean 

underground drainage systems (UGDs). Already a 

successful product with a presence in Kerala, Haryana 

and Andhra Pradesh, HHIDS and ONGC decided to 

bring the service of Bandicoot to Tamil Nadu with the 

intention to eradicate manual scavenging practice in 

the State. With its first robotic scavenging project 

launched at Thanjavur Municipal Corporation, the 

partnership's ambitious initiative made its mark. There 

are10059 Manholes present in the 258.79 km long UGD 

Sewer Lines of Thanjavur Municipal Corporation.

This sophisticated machine automatically detects the 

blockage in sewer lines and has the capacity to sense 

the presence of poisonous gases.  With the human 

comparable Robotic Arm and smart user interface, 

Bandicoot conveniently performs de-silting, cleaning 

and effective unclogging of Underground Drainage 

Systems(UGD). To make this an effective solution, 

sanitary workers in the Corporation have been trained 

to operate the machine.

With even smaller towns opting for the Underground 

Drainage systems nowadays, this robotic scavenging 

machine is a boon to conservancy workers in the 

country.  Taking cues from the successful execution of 

this project, the ONGC-HHIDS partnership has planned 

to deploy 11 more Bandicoots across the States of 

Tamil Nadu and Andhra Pradesh.
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Right Attitude is everything!

The ACC-funded project executed at Bargarh 

Municipality emphasises on building awareness on 

Municipal Solid Waste Management in five selected 

Wards. The project strives to make people cognizant 

of the importance of community contribution in 

keeping their surroundings clean.  

The objective of the project is to support the 

Municipality in making the Resource Recovery Park 

(RRP) of the Municipality functional. Various 

activities were executed to reach out to multiple 

stakeholders towards realising this objective. As a 

first step, training programmes on waste 

management, sanitation, operational procedure 

and safety were conducted for key Bargarh 

Municipal officials, followed by training for sanitary 

workers.  

Various Behavior Change Communication (BCC) 

activities like door-to-door campaigns, 

demonstration programmes on waste segregation 

at source etc. were conducted to sensitize and train 

households, school students and self-help groups.  

Public awareness programmes were conducted at 

public places, commercials etc., to educate the 

commoners and shopkeepers.  Programmes like 

street play, puppet shows, and rallies were also 

organised to spread the knowledge on Solid Waste 

Management (SWM) among the public.  

Demonstration and training on backyard composting 

were provided to households to encourage them to 

practice composting methods in their own backyards. 

Arts and crafts from waste materials were promoted to 

make people adopt the practice of reduce, reuse and 

recycle. Completion of the BCC project at Bargarh with 

a knowledgeable and active community will augur well 

for the successful implementation of The MSWM project 

at the Municipality. 

Skill Training in Jamul, Chhattisgarh

At ACC Trust, the goal has been clear- to transform 

lives and create a better world for the people. ACC 

Trust is working steadfastly to improve the lives of 

people living in marginalised or economically 

backward communities, with programmes that 

encompass livelihoods, education, health & 

sanitation and women empowerment. ACC Trust 

comes up with ground-breaking technology and 

creative solutions to drive humanity to a better, 

prosperous future.

DISHA mainly focuses on eliminating unemployment 

among people in host communities. Its initiatives 

also provide necessary training and education 

required to make people employable by:

Ÿ Enhancing capabilities and providing economic 

benefits to women through micro-enterprises

Ÿ Enabling marginalised households to access 

gainful self-employment

Ÿ Creating opportunities for youth development

Ÿ Promoting equality through participation and 

inclusion of all individuals, groups and 

communities

All cement work of ACC establish a full-fledged 

training centers in their work location as part of their 

social initiative.  In contrast with other locations, Jamul is 

a well-developed city with support from Bhillai Steel 

plant. Starting from March 2019, For a duration of 9.5 

months from date of inception (with two year post-

placement follow-up support) and renewable on mutual 

agreement of parties for the next stage of interventions, 

HHIDS targeted to complete Identification, Mobilization, 

Empowerment and Perception Building of 562 

beneficiaries, Facilitate training center with necessary 

consumables, Providing the certificates under VTP 

certification (NSDC) & Certificate to be branded with 

ACC Trust and NABARD logo and facilitate placement 

/Self Employment support to all Participants with a target 

salary of Rs.7000 onwards/month. 
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Campus Waste Management – A holistic approach

The campus waste management project initiated 

at the Indian Institute of Technology, Hyderabad (IIT-

H) is a one of its kind and unique project. The 

uniqueness of the project lies in creating a zero-

waste campus at IIT-H by establishing systems for the 

collection of segregated waste, transportation and 

introducing waste to appropriate treatment 

processes within the campus itself to achieve a self-

sustaining campus in the waste management front.

The three-year project design, build and operate 

the required waste handling facilities such as a 

Resource Recovery Park (RRP) constituting 

vermicomposting bins, storage room for recyclable 

materials, compost and other machinery, a biogas 

plant to handle the organic waste and food waste 

and an incineration unit for processing of hazardous 

and other mixed waste. The organic waste and the 

food waste collected from households, canteens 

and mess shall serve as input material for the biogas 

plant. The output methane gas shall be utilised at 

the canteen as cooking fuel.  The output slurry 

along with the unsuitable organic waste and STP 

slurry is processed via the vermicomposting method. 

Bins placed along the roads in the campus ensure 

cleanliness in the campus. Behaviour Change 

Communication (BCC) activities targeting the 

stakeholders of the institute complement waste 

collection and processing activities, by changing 

the attitude of the target group through constant 

sensitization of the importance of a proper solid waste 

management system and environmental 

conservation.

Green Rameswaram Project

Vivekananda Kendra under its Natural Resource 

Development Project (NARDEP) promoted the 

“Green Rameswaram Project” to preserve 

Rameswaram's natural environment.  The 2014-

initiated project covers a range of verticals such as 

water management, waste management, 

renewable energy, new merchandise and 

livelihoods, landscaping and beautification, green 

health, heritage, eco-tourism & green transport and 

marine bio-diversity. 

Under the aegis of Vivekananda Kendra, various 

stakeholders of the island-government 

organisations, community and civil society 

organisations are brought together in the 

transformation, chaired by the District Collector of 

Ramanathapuram, a district in southern Tamil Nadu. 

HHIDS is the implementation partner of the SWM 

vertical of the Green Rameswaram project. Funded 

by the CSR wing of the Oil and Natural Gas 

Corporation (ONGC), the HHIDS intervention 

brought commendable changes at four wards of 

Rameswaram during 2014 – 2015.  The project 

established a systemic way of solid waste 

management involving door-to-door waste 

collection, transportation and processing. A 

decentralised composting facility was also set up at 

the Rameswaram Island to process everyday waste. 

Presently, Rameswaram Municipality continues the 

established system at all 21 wards of the town.

In 2019, to act against the harsh realities of continuous 

depletion of water resources at the island due to 

factors like changing weather patterns, reduced 

rainfall, climatic change, urbanisation, increase in 

population, the commodification of water, HHIDS 

ventured into another vertical, water management 

with the CSR support from National Stock Exchange 

Foundation (NSE) and technical guidance from Green 

Rameswaram Committee.

The NSE Foundation-funded project at Rameswaram 

Island addresses various issues pertaining to water 

resource depletion.  In this vertical, HHIDS aims to 

provide community-based projects on safe drinking 

water through installation of Reverse Osmosis water 

treatment plants, Rain Water Harvesting (RWH) 

structures, Kitchen Garden, Biogas units along with 

intensive Behavioural Change Communication (BCC) 

and institution-building activities to preserve the 

ecosystem envisaged under the initiative. 
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Poverty Alleviation through sustainable livelihood 
opportunities for people from socially and 
economically backward communities

The project has given opportunities for people 

belonging to the lower strata of the society, 

especially widows of alcoholic addicts, divorcees 

and rag pickers. Around 9486 people from socially 

and economically backward communities (majority 

is women) have been provided with jobs as Green 

Friends to date by HHIDS since inception, with the 

present count at 1287. The new role with a steady 

income has helped them overcome poverty and 

improved their quality of life.  Their wards now go to 

school and the tuition fees are paid.  The self-

esteem of divorcees or widows of alcoholic partners 

has improved. Their status in society has improved 

and gained more self-confidence.  The project also 

ensures the general well-being of the Green Friends 

and their families through regular health checkups 

linking with public health centers by HHIDS.

Promoting segregation of waste at source -
household level

Waste segregation is deemed to be the perfect 

gateway for a sustainable waste management 

system. Waste segregation at different stages of the 

waste management cycle ensures a speedy, 

hassle-free and effective collection and processing 

system. Especially, waste segregation at source i.e. 

household level needs to be used as a strategy for 

successful waste management intervention. 

Households, the primary generators of municipal 

waste often tend to overlook or stay indifferent to 

segregating waste due to various reasons. To improve 

stakeholder participation at the primary stage of 

SWM, households are facilitated with tools to help 

segregate waste.

HHIDS model incorporates 'two-bin & one-bag system' 

to aid waste segregation at the source. Two colored 

bins (green bin for a biodegradable and red bin for 

domestic hazardous waste) and a blue bag (for 

recyclable waste) are provided to every household in 

all project locations under this model. In addition, 

the blue bag is imprinted with various types of 

recyclable waste as a knowledge material.  The 

model has ensured 100 percent door-to-door 

waste collection and the treatment of 

biodegradable waste to bio-compost, 

channelization of recyclable waste to recyclers 

and the remaining domestic hazardous waste to 

dump yard.

Recycle for Life model 

Lack of source segregation remains a challenge 

for municipal solid waste management across 

communities in India. To overcome the issue and 

establish segregation at source, a new initiative 

'Recycle for Life' was implemented as a pilot in 

Mamallapuram Town Panchayat located in the 

Kancheepuram district of Tamil Nadu. All the 

households were provided with a green coloured 

bin (biodegradable waste), a red coloured bin 

(domestic hazardous waste) and a large blue bag 

(recyclable waste) and instructed about types of 

wastes, its adverse effects on the environment and 

the benefits of source segregation through a lady 

Motivator, who will visit all the households along 

with the vehicle. The bio and non-biodegradable 

wastes are collected daily and the recyclable 

waste is collected once a week.

Subsequently, the project has achieved 80% 

source segregation of waste among target 

households and 82% waste diversion from reaching 

the landfill. The achieved outcome is due to 

constant advocacy and active participation of 

targeted households which re-emphasizes the 

importance of source segregation for an effective 

Municipal Solid Waste Management. Owing to its 

success, the Recycle for Life is now implemented in 

all MSWM projects handled by HHIDS, with an 

overall waste diversion percentage of 62.

Global Positioning System (GPS) in collection 
vehicles

Technological advancement improves both 

efficiency and effectiveness of waste 

management intervention. As part of an efficient 

monitoring system, Global Positioning System (GPS) 

tracking system has been put in place by HHIDS for 

the first time in our Karaikal MSWM project. The GPS 

technology aids in streamlining of vehicle 

movement, ensuring a time-bound waste 

collection and transportation system. Such a 

system fosters residents' practice of regulated 

handing over of household waste to collection 

vehicles. 

Ensuring stakeholder participation through various 
means

Targeting every household to practice segregation 

of waste at source, conducting various Behavior 

Change Communication (BCC) activities like 

meetings with Self Help Group (SHGs) & RWAs, 

waste segregation demonstration programmes 

targeting households, educating students through 

presentations, organizing study tours to Resource 

Recovery Park (RRP) which acts as Knowledge 

Resource Center (KRC) for MSWM are few of the 

interventions by HHIDS to ensure stakeholder 

participation. Such is the impact of active 

participation of stakeholders that all HHIDS project 

locations have achieved high waste segregation 

at source percentages and waste diversion 

percentages, which would have otherwise ended 

up in open dump yards.  

Rangoli at Garbage Vulnerable Points

To eradicate littering in open spaces aka Garbage 

Vulnerable Points (GVPs), an innovative solution 

was created by HHIDS. Abolishing this practice 

directly involves changing people's attitudes. To 

attract people and to convince them, a creative 

intervention was needed. Out of the box thinking 

approach by HHDS led to the aesthetically 

pleasing Rangoli, an art form practiced for 

centuries in the country. 

Initially tested at our Karaikal MSWM project, our 

team cleared the litter and instead created 

beautiful, colorful Rangolis as an experiment. 

Gradually, people started respecting the effort and 

changed their practice of littering in those GVPs, 

leading to a reduction in the GVP numbers in the 

project. Out of the 31 GVPs in the project, 20 GVPs 

have been eradicated to date. The successful 

innovation is now being replicated in all our 

interventions across the country. 
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Participants were asked to take up the challenge of 

using public transport for daily commute for a whole 

day and post it with a photo on Facebook with the 

hashtag #PublicTransportChallenge2019. They were 

also asked to challenge their friends (five minimum) 

to take up the Challenge and make it viral. 

More than 1000 people participated in the 

Challenge and posted selfies on their Facebook 

accounts. A lucky draw was conducted at the end 

of the Challenge and one lucky winner was 

awarded with an eco-friendly Electric Scooter.  

Waste-to-art

For a sustainable, eco-friendly approach, every 

waste needs to be considered as a resource. By 

finding a suitable way in utilizing the waste, we can 

cut down the pollution and subsequent pressure 

on the environment. One such way that HHIDS 

created and succeeded for waste materials that 

usually occupy the landfills is 'Waste-to-Art'. 

In this activity, waste that cannot be recycled or 

expensive to recycle, or lack of advanced 

technological setup required for safe disposal of 

such waste is utilized in the most creative manner. 

Waste-to-Art is an upcycling method to convert 

waste materials into an art form or eco-friendly 

alternatives for certain things used in our everyday 

lives. Chairs, Tables, flowerpots are few such 

examples. 

In this initiative, discarded tires, glass, plastic and 

other materials are getting re-introduced into 

society. In most of our project locations, such 

wastes are subjected to creativity resulting to eye-

catching products. A kitchen garden has been 

developed using discarded plastic bottles and 

used tires in one of the project locations. 

The model arts created from waste are displayed 

at many of the local governing bodies like Town 

Panchayat offices where HHIDS has its presence. 

Taking cues and noticing HHIDS initiatives in 

upcycling waste, many local governing bodies 

came forward to take the HHIDS' 'waste to art' 

recycling initiatives to the next level. 

Innovation in water security project 

In our Water Security project at Rameswaram 

Island, a new filter system – suction method utilizing 

gravitational force, has been introduced in 50 

rainwater harvesting structures across the Island as 

a pilot system. The new filter system is 

maintenance-free and outputs cleaner water 

when compared to the conventional filtering 

system. 

Capacitive D-eionization (CDI) water treatment 

system, a technologically advanced water 

purifying system has been introduced as part of the 

Water Security project on the Island. This system has 

cheaper maintenance and wastage when 

compared to the conventional Reverse Osmosis 

(RO) method used to purify water. This technology 

is part of the new potable water initiative on the 

island. Scarce of drinking water sources, 

Rameswaram Island now has the capacity to 

manage the potable water needs of the local 

community. 

Sludge as fertilizer

Sludge is a potential natural fertilizer when treated 

properly. Through our Fecal Sludge Management 

(FSM) project, sludge is utilized as manure for plants.  

Sludge from the fecal sludge treatment plant at 

Karunguzhi Town Panchayat is treated through the 

windrow composting method and made into 

organic fertilizer. In the treatment of septage water, 

sludge is a by-product that has the potential to be 

utilized as an organic fertilizer. 

Public Transport Challenge

On the World Environment Day 2019, based on the 

“Beat Air Pollution” theme, HHIDS conducted 

'Public Transport Challenge 2019', a social media 

initiative to convince people to use public transport 

for their daily commute as an eco-friendly option. 

A page was created on Facebook with necessary 

information and instructions on the Challenge. 
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Since its inception, HHIDS' core operations had 

been oriented towards Municipal Solid Wastes and 

its management. True to its nature, HHIDS took up 

projects that posed various challenges and 

successfully managed to implement its tried and 

tested waste management model. Over the period, 

HHIDS expanded its reach by entering diverse but 

inter-related spheres of waste management and 

environmental conservation. 

Geographical, Spatial and Temporal in nature

 HHIDS projects are varied based on project needs. 

With expansion came new opportunities and 

challenges. Having its foothold in Tamil Nadu, HHIDS 

endeavored new horizons in different parts of the 

country, carrying forward the very concept that 

reaped rewards nationally and globally – ' The 

Recycle for Life model'. But, monotony has never 

been the facet of HHIDS interventions. Different 

mediums, be it geographical, spatial or temporal 

present different scenarios that can be perceived 

as learning platforms from where one gains the 

capacity to thrive – the inherent notion of HHIDS 

imbibed in its culture. 

Started in a small village called Mudichur near 

Chennai Metropolitan, HHIDS gradually expanded 

with a focus in the State of Tamil Nadu. Projects 

were a mix of timeline-oriented, result-oriented and 

service-oriented in different administrative milieus with 

varying capacities. The immediate project after 

Mudichur was Kundrathur, a town panchayat with 

larger area, population and waste generation. 

Gaining knowledge and confidence, HHIDS branched 

out to various Indian States to establish its successful 

intervention. Puducherry Union Territory, Telangana 

and Andhra Pradesh soon followed in the list of HHIDS 

presence. The biggest project of HHIDS is Karaikal 

Municipality with a population of around 25,000 and 

waste handling of about 40 MT per day.

When companies, organizations and institutions 

started approaching HHIDS to implement their 

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) interventions, 

HHIDS reached out to States like Chhattisgarh, 

Madhya Pradesh, Gujarat, Jharkhand, Odisha and 

Uttar Pradesh. 

Some of the CSR projects are time-bound with clearly 

defined targets to achieve; while most projects with 

governing bodies are service oriented by 

implementing MSWM for those particular 

communities. 

Presence in inter-related spheres like Water Security, 
Septage and Sewage Treatment, Behavior Change 
Communication (BCC)

With a well-established system, HHIDS started 

venturing into multiple spheres linked to the climate 

crisis and where actions need to be taken. 

Institutions and Corporates alike offered HHIDS to 

implement their projects. 

Achieving success in any community-oriented 

project mandates community participation. A 

community is an amalgamation of multiple 

stakeholders with varied interests. Bringing them 

together for community's good requires additional 

intervention. Simply put, changing the attitude of 

an individual toward orienting on an eco-friendly 

lifestyle is the magic wand to tackle climate crisis. 

HHIDS does exactly that. Constantly approaching 

individuals and sensitizing them on MSWM and 

various other environmental measures has come to 

fruition in all HHIDS projects. People started realizing 

the effects of climate change on our environment 

and are contributing in many ways, like 

segregating waste at source, taking the message 

to community members on their own initiative and 

stopped littering in open places and waterways. 

The effect of Behavior Change Communication 

(BCC) intervention by HHIDS is clearly visible 

through the waste segregation at source and 

Garbage Vulnerable Points (GVPs) numbers in the 

projects. 

HHIDS' water security intervention goes back to 

2013 when it started its Community Safe Drinking 

Water (CSDW) project in Mudichur village to 

provide potable water to the local community at a 

nominal rate, satiating their drinking water needs. 

Over the years, the project got established across 

Tamil Nadu. National Stock Exchange Foundation 

(NSEF) offer to execute its water security 

intervention in Rameswaram Island further 

strengthened HHIDS expertise in the sphere. The 

Water Security project currently implemented in 

Rameswaram exudes a holistic approach to 

overcome the potable water woes in the water-

scarce island. This includes various interventions 

such as building community safe drinking water 

plants, rainwater harvesting structures at 

community buildings and for individuals, 

groundwater recharging structures and soak pits 

along with BCC activities. This has vastly improved 

the water storing structures across the island and 

indeed a watershed moment in the history of the 

island.

Untreated sewage remains an issue that has its a 

negative impact on the environment. To create a 

safe system for proper removal and treatment of 

septage water from households, HHIDS partnered 

with Indian Institute for Human Settlements (IIHS) a 

government institution working on community 

development. The project implemented at 

Karunguzhi town in the outskirts of Chennai, 

involves the reduction in untreated faecal sludge 

released into the environment through 

improvements in containment, ensuring safe 

collection and transport of faecal sludge and safe 

treatment at the Fecal Sludge Treatment Plant 

(FSTP). BCC activities and stakeholder involvement 

complement the project by bringing in key officials, 

elected representatives, educational institutions 

and other welfare bodies. Setting up an apt system 

for wastewater removal and treatment is another 

step toward creating a sustainable, 

environmentally friendly waste management 

system. 

New spheres like skill training, and Climate positive 

actions like Smokeless Chulhas and Solar Lamps for 

remote villages

It is imperative that the skills of the people working 

in the environment sector need to be upgraded to 

the current milieu to remain a step ahead in 

tackling climate issues: be it an exorbitant waste 

generation or the perennial issues poorest families 

face which also contributes to the degradation of 

the our environment. HHIDS visions empowerment 

of local community through skill training alongside 

core MSWM intervention. With the support of ACC 

Limited, HHIDS conducted skill training for youths 

from a poor economic backgrounds in Sindri 

located in Jharkhand State and Jamul located in 

Chhattisgarh State. The training imparted 

knowledge on air conditioning mechanics, 

computer hardware and software, tailoring skills, 

etc. The initiative benefitted 787 youths in the 

target areas.

Climate Change requires actions that are 

synonymous with global measures integrated with 

interventions tailor-made for local needs. Providing 

smokeless chulhas (cooking device) and solar 

lamps to rural communities reeling under poverty 

and inaccessibility to technologies is a boon in 

every respect. Suffering from ailments due to 

burning wood in traditional earthen chulhas for 

cooking purposes, the community of Suva and 

Akhod villages located in the state of Gujarat, were 

a happy bunch when the Technip FMC funded 

climate action intervention reached out to them. 

Now, solar lights and smokeless chulhas provide 

better facilities and improved health in these 

communities. Small climate actions leading to 

bigger climate change measures as envisioned by 

the global community. And HHIDS is right among 

the scheme of things. 
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Micro-Composting Centers with GCC

Micro-Composting Centers are part of the waste 

management system established by the Greater 

Chennai Corporation (GCC) in the city of Chennai. 

The centers showcase the de-centralized approach 

by the GCC to tackle the massive amount of waste 

generated in the city. With an impressive track 

record, HHIDS remains a frontrunner in handling 

MSWM. 

With the expertise of second to none, HHIDS was 

awarded MCC management in six centers present 

in Zone 14 & 15 of GCC. Working with a centralized 

approach in most of its interventions, this project is a 

positive deviation for HHIDS, in the aspect of 

learning different methods. Handling around 65MT 

biodegradable waste every day, the project 

converts the waste into natural fertilizer, a value 

addition to the MSWM setup in the city. 

Contribution of stakeholders in environmental 
conservation 

Across HHIDS interventions, one thing that stands out 

is stakeholder participation. Stakeholders from 

multiple backgrounds with varying capacities 

contribute to the environment through the MSWM 

projects. 

Stakeholder participation is ensured in every stages 

of project implementation. It starts from pre-project 

discussions involving different stakeholders of the 

community viz. government officials, Resident 

Welfare Associations, shop owners, community- 

based organizations, etc. to assess the needs of the 

community. During project implementation, 

stakeholders are encouraged to practice 

segregation of waste at source – the essential 

aspect for a successful waste management system. 

Community volunteers are engaged in raising 

awareness among the masses about the MSWM 

project and educate the community on 

environmental conservation to preserve the local 

environment. Stakeholders are constantly engaged 

in activities like mass cleaning, Litter Picking 

campaigns, awareness rallies, sapling planting, 

competitions based on environmental themes, etc. 

for active participation in eco-friendly initiatives 

and instill accountability for their actions. 

More than 60 percent of the households in all 

project locations practice waste segregation at 

source. Many households and commercial 

establishments avoid using single-use plastics. Some 

community members practice backyard 

composting and terrace gardening. Stakeholders 

believe that such small activities when executed in 

a collective manner will help in maintaining a clean 

environment.

Green Friends role in environmental conservation 

Green Friend contribution to environmental 

protection is immense. With a selfless attitude and 

unwavering commitment to the job at hand, their 

contribution to the society not only limits itself to 

MSWM and sanitation, but greatly contributes to 

environment, locally and globally. From waste 

collection to segregation, composting to biogas 

generation, cleaning to raising awareness, Green 

Friends' presence is felt in every step towards 

attaining a healthier environment. The role of 

Green Friends’ is well-defined: help the community 

in disposing of waste in a regulated manner; clear 

the litter from the streets and waterways; ensure 

maximum waste gets treated and minimum waste 

reaches landfills; educate communities on the 

essentiality of segregation of waste at source and 

avoidance of single-use plastics. Their services have 

brought significant changes to the local 

environment at all MSWM projects with clean 

streets, absence of Garbage Vulnerable Points 

(GVPs), clear ponds, lakes and beaches, reduced 

waste deposition in landfills and so on. Green 

Friends thus act as the positive agents that connect 

communities with their local environments.

Environmental Impact

HHIDS interventions create numerous positive 

impacts on the environment. An effective waste 

collection and segregation mechanism divert 

around 80 percent of waste, both organic and 

recyclable, from reaching the dump yards. This 

significantly reduces methane emission from dump 

yards. Also, recyclable waste sent for processing 

reduces the dependency on fresh raw materials, 

wherein extraction of such materials from source 

causes heavy damage to the environment.  

Cleaning of streets, drainages water bodies and 

waterways reduces the amount of plastic ending 

up in the oceans, a great support for the marine 

ecosystem. It also prevents the contamination of 

drinking water sources like ponds, lakes, etc. in the 

respective communities.

Compost produced using organic waste helps in 

maintaining soil fertility, leading to improved 

agricultural produce. Waste-to-energy initiative to 

generate biogas from food and green waste 

creates renewable energy, an eco-friendly 

alternative for fossil fuel driven energy setup. 

Social impact 

Green Friends often come from marginalized 

communities. Assigned with menial jobs most of the 

time, people from such communities neither get the 

recognition nor the respect they deserve. Instead 

they are usually looked down upon by a larger part 

of the community. But, this is not the case anymore 

for our Green Friends. Hitherto a rarity, Green 

Friends are now treated with respect by the 

communities. Realization of Green Friends' 

contribution to MSWM by the communities broke 

the shackles of social stigma attached to people 

from marginalized communities. People accept the 

fact that Green Friends are the architect of MSWM 

projects and heed to the requests of Green Friends 

to support the system for a collective effort in 

achieving the set goal – cleaner communities. 

Alcoholism remain a persistent issue affecting many 

families. Some of our Green Friends affected by 

alcoholism have stories to share with us. Especially, 

in the Karaikal MSWM project, 40 Green Friends are 

widows from marginalized communities. Alcoholism 

drastically changed their lives when they lost their 

spouses. These suddenly-turned breadwinners were 

lost at sea before committing to HHIDS, where they 

found livelihood opportunities to lead better lives in 

the society. And they did grasp the opportunities 

whole-heartedly. Now they lead respectable lives 

and encourage their progenies to aim higher. 

Covid-19 impact

An unprecedented nevertheless grave situation, 

the rise of the COVID-19 pandemic put many lives 

and livelihoods at risk: forcing people to both stay 

inside their homes and head back to their villages, 

an ironic situation never experienced in such large 

scale. Businesses were down; people left desolate. 

But governments and frontline workers gave their 

hearts out to keeping the pandemic in control. 

Green Friends were among those very few noble 

people. 

During the initial stages of the nationwide 

lockdown, Green Friends supported many 

government-led sanitation measures. Green Friends 

regularly cleaned the streets and applied lime 

powder. They worked together with the local 

governing bodies to apply disinfectants on streets, 

households, other entities and vehicles from other 

states. Importantly, Green Friends with protective 

gear collected wastes from quarantined 

households affected by the COVID-19 virus. These 

activities were in addition to regular MSWM 

operations, an added pressure to the already 

strenuous job. Putting their lives at risk, Green 

Friends and the field team ensured unaffected 

functioning of waste management in their 

respective projects to contain the pandemic to the 

fullest extent.

User Payment integrated in household tax in most 
projects – liaison with local governing bodies

When HHIDS ventured into the MSWM sphere in 

2007, waste management initiatives were nascent 

among local governing bodies. Stakeholder 

participation was almost nil in most of the local 

bodies. Neither responsibility of individuals. 

Government allocation of funds for waste 

management in Town and Village Panchayats 

were inadequate. To fill in the inadequacy, local 

governing bodies began charging households a 

nominal amount as user payment for the waste 

management services provided. The new system 

did not have many enthusiasts as most of the 

communities opposed getting charged for the 

services. Such unaccountability remains a 

hindrance in most local bodies for its affects the 

revenue needed to provide complete waste 

management services. 

HHIDS took the responsibility of collecting user 

payments from households in its projects where the 

user payment system is in place. Realizing the 

difficulties in collecting the user fee, HHIDS 

suggested to Town Panchayats in Mamallapuram, 

Perungalathur and Uthiramerur to incorporate user 

fee in the annual household tax system 

implemented by the local governing bodies. Soon, 

all these Town Panchayats incorporated the user 

payment system in the annual tax system, ensuring 

the sustainability of waste management services.

Policy change in TPs through our interventions – 
Project funding (financial sustainability, RRP 
development and biogas inclination

During nascent periods of waste management in 

Tamil Nadu, local bodies were not sure about the 

financial sustainability of the projects, as only 
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meagre funding was allocated by the government 

for waste management in Town and Village 

Panchayats and no devised strategy for project 

sustainability. The result was a poor display of 

fragmented waste management systems in all 

towns and villages. No visible changes were noticed 

with streets remained littered, waterways polluted 

and entire wastes dumped in open landfills. Sanitary 

workers and residents alike remained ignorant about 

the importance of a sound waste management 

system and its benefits to the local environment. 

Also, waste processing was unheard of in most of 

those panchayats, with no prevalence of waste 

processing units. 

When taken the responsibility to implement waste 

management in some of the local bodies, HHIDS 

started experimenting with waste management 

processes, educating the stakeholders about the 

basics of waste management and ways that can 

provide financial stability to the projects. Waste as a 

valuable resource was considered when HHIDS 

started promoting waste segregation at multiple 

levels of waste management. An effective waste 

segregation paved the way for the processing of 

waste, wherein lies the opportunity for revenue 

generation from waste. Compost production and 

recyclable waste helped generate revenue 

ensuring partial economic stability. Soon, HHIDS 

started tapping energy from waste by installing a 

biogas unit in Mamallapuram Town Panchayat, 

converting biogas into electricity. 

All these initiatives helped reduce the financial 

burden of the respective local governing bodies, 

but the pivot for economic sustainability lies in the 

HHIDS project development strategy. To offset the 

lack of funding, new strategies were formulated 

such as public-private partnership through 

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), and fund 

mobilization through user contribution and put to 

use. While some projects were supported by CSR 

funds, the majority of the projects relied on user 

payment system to tackle fund shortage. This able 

method to fill the funding gap was further 

enhanced when HHIDS proposed to the local 

governing bodies to incorporate the a user 

payment system into the annual service tax for 

households levied by the respective governing 

bodies for a seamless process.  Soon, it became a 

reality in all local governing bodies where HHIDS has 

its presence. Implementing these strategies led to 

self-sustaining MSWM projects, an essential aspect in 

an integrated, sustainable MSWM system. 

Leadership role of HHIDS in Climate Action 

Changing weather patterns, increased extreme 

weather events, sea-level rise and greenhouse gas 

emissions are displacing millions of people, 

affecting livelihoods and disrupting local 

economies. Overcoming these challenges posed 

by climate change led to the adoption of 

Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) by the 

United Nations, agreed upon by the member 

countries. One of the 17 SDGs is Climate Action. 

Climate Action is an umbrella goal that is 

intrinsically connected to all other SDGs. The Paris 

Agreement at COP 21 reiterated the urgency for 

global actors to come together and scale up 

global responses in combating climate change 

through Climate Action.

The recent analysis of the UN High Commissioner for 

Refugees (UNHCR) underlines the urgency and 

complexity of the issue. It is estimated that, on 

average, 21.5 million people have been displaced 

by climate or weather-related events each year 

since 2008. Climate change directly impacts 

agricultural yields as major staple crops fell by 40 

megatons per year between 1981 and 2002 

because of the warmer climate. 2030 it is estimated 

that adaptation costs will range between US$140-

300 billion per year

So, what is Climate Action really ?

It is to bring scaled-up efforts to combat climate 

change – by strengthening resilience and adaptive 

capacity to climate-related hazards and natural 

disasters; integrating climate change measures into 

national policies, strategies and planning; 

improving education, awareness-raising and 

human and institutional capacity on climate 

change mitigation, adaptation, impact reduction 

and early warning. 

HHIDS role in Climate Action

Being a prominent agent in the Municipal Solid 

Waste Management sphere, HHIDS exudes an 

integrated and holistic approach, the very essence 

of its interventions. Throughout its existence, HHIDS 

tried and tested various strategies and brought to 

the table an amalgamation of diversification, 

innovation and participation mechanisms, into 

sustainable solutions for environmental issues. 

With a systematic waste management in place, 

HHIDS can and has proven continuously in 

developing a city/town/village into an eco-friendly 

environment that contributes to the local 

ecosystem. The major action towards climate 

change is the reduction of waste reaching open 

dump yards. Open dump yards are significant 

contributors of methane, a greenhouse gas (GHG). 

By diverting around 65 percent of waste from 

reaching these dump yards, HHIDS helps in 

mitigating methane emissions into our atmosphere. 

Collecting wastes at the source, clearing drainage 

system and effluents of plastics and cleaning 

streets routinely effectively reduces pollution at 

every stage of waste cycle. Marine ecosystems are 

sure to benefit as plastics are removed from these 

activities, which would otherwise have debilitating 

effects on such ecosystems. 

The support system provided to the government in 

clearing wastes in the aftermath of devastating 

Cyclones that (Vardah, Gaja, Nivar) occurred in 

the state of Tamil Nadu exemplified HHIDS 

resilience during extreme weather events. Over the 

years, HHIDS worked with governments to bring 

policy changes to withstand such events and 

mechanisms for the positive contribution that will 

help avert such events in the longer run. Educating 

frontline workers and officials on climate positive 

actions like waste management techniques, 

waste-to-energy methods etc. and disaster 

management methods through trainings, 

workshops and exposure visits strengthens the 

institutional capacity to devise strategies on 

climate change mitigation and adaptation. 

Incorporating waste-to-energy intervention, 

capacity-building exercises and stakeholder 

engagement in MSWM projects by many local 

governments is a testament to this. 

Energy from waste i.e. biogas generation from 

food waste and green waste through the  

biomethanation process has been adopted by 

many government institutions with the support of 

HHIDS. This low-cost, renewable energy solution 

have the potential to support sizeable portion of 

the community when scaled up. An expert in this 

front, HHIDS constantly engages governments and 

businesses through forums to consider large-scale 

waste-to-energy plants to tap its true potential in 

the country. 

Energy solutions coupled with well-established 

recycling structures in all MSWM projects led to 

circular economy wherein waste is considered as a 

resource. This new system builds economic, social 

and natural capital that is symbiotic in nature. With 

waste as a resource, it negates pollution and keeps 

materials in use for longer periods, providing time 

for natural systems to regenerate. For instance, 

composting of waste organic materials upkeeps 

soil fertility which is valuable resource. While, 

reusing, repairing and remanufacturing of plastic 

materials keeps the resource in a regenerative 

cycle. The circular economy breaks the take-make-

waste industrial model which entails a linear 

economy and excessive use of limited natural 

resources, thereby adding stress to an already 

vulnerable environment.

Engaging stakeholders in decision-making process 

and other climate-friendly actions is necessary for a 

community to realize the importance of individual 

contribution to sustain a healthy environment. 

Adding to this the preparedness for adverse 

weather events makes the community climate-

resilient and adaptive, and adds value to Climate 

Action measures. HHIDS does exactly that. 

Stakeholder participation is ensured in every stage 

of a project: in the decision-making process to 

devise strategy based on community needs; in 

project implementation like encouraging them to 

practice segregating waste at source, backyard 

composting and develop terrace gardens; 

volunteer in various awareness campaigns, etc. 

Whereas, constant training to Green Friends, the 

pivot of HHIDS interventions, enable them to 

sensitize and educate the community on the 

positive effects of a sound MSWM. Such continuous 

activities by HHIDS have created numerous climate 

champions. These individuals act with a sense of 

purpose to help save the environment by 

promoting government initiatives among masses, 

and collaborate with HHIDS for continuous 

communication with the community to create 

awareness on climate change and collective effort 

needed from the community to tackle climate 

issues.

HHIDS has a clearly defined goal and manifests 

unwavering commitment towards achieving it – 

providing sustainable waste management solutions 

to safeguard our environment. Climate change 

and mitigation measures will remain an integral 

part of it.

- 
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Municipal Solid Waste Management in Mudichur 
Village Panchayat 

Located on the outskirts of Chennai, India, 

Mudichur is a village panchayat comprising of 

about 6800 households. Most people either own 

small businesses or work as daily-wage laborers, 

and only a small percentage of people work in 

the agricultural sector. The total waste generated 

in this village is about 3.3MT each day. Without 

proper waste disposal, the place used to stink and 

many residents constantly complained about 

various kinds of health problems. HHIDS is 

implementing Municipal Solid Waste 

Management (MSWM) project at the village. 

Door-to-door waste collection, transportation and 

processing of waste are conducted on a daily 

basis. 

The success of the MSWM project in Mudichur has 

won the panchayat many awards. Due to 

Panchayat's financial constraints, HHIDS took the 

responsibility of project implementation and 

spends for the project expenses as a service 

activity. 

Blood Donation Drive

HHIDS organized blood donation drive with the 

support of Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation 

(DTCC), a financial services company.  Around 92 

units of blood were collected during the drive.

Support during COVID-19 pandemic

At most of the project locations, apart from 

regular waste collection, transportation and 

processing, Green Friends supported the 

government-run initiatives for ensuring safety to 

the public during the lockdown.

During the initial phase of the COVID-19 pandemic in 

the country, HHIDS supported the local governing 

bodies in sanitation works, to contribute to keeping the 

towns and villages clean. Green Friends and field staff 

at all our projects worked relentlessly cleaning streets 

and applying bleaching powder in crowded places, 

Garbage Vulnerable Points (littering spots), and main 

roads. Spraying disinfectants across the entire project 

areas to upkeep sanitation too was among the work 

schedule of Green Friends, who worked in multiple 

shifts to ensure cleanliness. 

Marking lines for social distancing, spreading 

awareness on wearing a mask, hand washing, audio 

campaigns, pamphlets and fliers were some other 

activities involving Green Friends and field staff to 

spread awareness in all project locations.  

Public Transport Challenge 2019

“Public Transport Challenge 2019” WED 2019 was an 

innovative campaign conducted to celebrate World 

Environment Day 2019 based on the theme of the 

year “Beat Air Pollution”.  The initiative tried to 

convince people to use public transport for their daily 

commute as an eco-friendly option and used social 

media as an important platform to communicate 

across various communities to reach out to the 

maximum number of people. 

An exclusive Facebook page was created on “Public 

Transport Challenge WED 2019” with all the necessary 

information and invited people to participate and 

challenge their friends, post their selfies as they take 

up the challenge. A lucky draw for the participants 

was conducted during July 2019, wherein an eco-

friendly electric scooter was awarded to the winner.  

Around 1100 people took up the challenge and 

posted their selfies on their Facebook page.  The 

initiative served its purpose in creating awareness 

among people, especially city dwellers, about the 

consequences of comfort travelling and in what ways 

they can contribute to the environment. 

Welfare Activity
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HHIDS respects and admires Green Friends to the 

hilt, as they are the frontline warriors in handling 

waste, hence maintaining a clean environment in 

major cities and towns. As a gratitude, HHIDS 

conducts various welfare activities to help Green 

Friends and their families.

Green Friends are provided with Personal 

Protective Equipment (PPE) such as gloves, 

gumboots, masks, jackets, caps and raincoats to 

ensure their safety at work.  Training programmes 

on health and hygiene are conducted regularly 

for Green Friends.

As part of HHIDS' welfare initiative, Green Friends 

are provided with Accident Insurance Policy with 

a combined premium of 2 lakhs to cover the 

employees during emergencies.  Regular medical 

camps are conducted four times in a year for 

Green Friends and their families as part of the 

healthcare package.  A doctor along with his 

team has been engaged to run the camps at 

every HHIDS project location. General health 

check-ups and along with prescribed medicines 

are provided free during the camp. At few of the 

remote project locations, the camps are 

conducted with the support from private 

hospitals.

Green Friends are people who came in search of livelihood 

opportunities from different regions. For them, to find 

housing in the project locality is marred with social stigma 

and economic inability. HHIDS in this respect helps Green 

Friends find suitable accommodation and provides 

financial assistance as an allowance in the respective 

localities.

Green Friends, from mostly marginalized communities, had 

previously lived on the 'food for survival' notion, as they 

suffered from extreme poverty. Lack of nutritious food 

reflected on their dire physical status which is still visible. A 

Nutritious meal will help them gain sustained energy to 

carry out the rigorous work of waste management. To 

eradicate this situation, HHIDS facilitated free, nutritious 

lunch for Green Friends on a daily basis with the support of 

local volunteers and charities in most of the projects. 

Owing to the COVID-19 outbreak during March 2020, 

Green Friends and field team were administered with 

multiple doses of Homeopathy medicine to boost their 

immunity. This is to safeguard their health while dispensing 

waste management duties during the pandemic. 

Besides, Green Friends and their families are constantly 

sensitized on personal hygiene and sanitation to upkeep 

their health. 

Training and Capacity Building 
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Capacity building can be defined as “the 

process aiming to facilitate, in conjunction with 

the stakeholders, a consolidation of their 

capacities at an individual, organisational and 

sectoral level to allow them to evolve and 

adapt to the new contextual requirements and 

fulfil their role within a governance structure.”

Behavioral Change Communication (BCC) 

strategy plays an important role in empowering 

stakeholders to make decisions with clarity, 

modify behaviors and change the social 

conditions to overcome the issue of waste. 

Information dissemination through knowledge 

sharing of the technical know-how of solid 

waste management is important for 

stakeholders to understand the technicality of 

the process. Such information will enable them 

to view the project in a holistic sense and help 

them enhance it by means of consensual 

decisions. 

Ÿ A two-day workshop for HHIDS staff on 

reporting methodology, training curriculum, 

roles and responsibilities was conducted at 

Mamallapuram during April 15-16, 2019.

Ÿ A two-day training programme on M&E, MIS 

for HHIDS team was conducted at 

Building Capacities to Enable Stakeholders

Kancheepuram by the senior team during 23-24 May, 

2019. 

Ÿ HHIDS official participated as a resource person and 

handled SWM sessions to social animators, Sanitary 

Inspectors and Sanitary Supervisors of various town 

panchayats in Kanyakumari district. It was a three-day 

training programme (10-12 June 2019) organized by 

DTP and ADTP at Villukuri & Kanyakumari. 

Ÿ HHIDS official participated and presented about our 

work during the Fecal Sludge Management workshop 

conducted by Tamil Nadu Urban Sanitation and 

Studies & Indian Institute of Housing Studies (IIHS) for 

Assistant Engineers, Executive Officers and Sanitary 

Inspectors of various districts held at Karunguzhi Town 

Panchayat on June 7, 2019.

Ÿ Senior team of HHIDS participated in the five-year 

visioning exercise workshop chaired by Dr. Kalpana 

Sankar, Chairperson of HHIDS.

Ÿ A team of HHIDS visited Nepal to study the Bio-CNG 

plant installed by M/s. SLPP Renew as a part of the 

mega biogas plant planned at Chennai corporation.

Ÿ On 19th November 2019, a consultation meeting and 

training for Sludge Operators was organized at the 

Town Panchayat Conference Hall in Karunguzhi Town 

Panchayat.  Safety measures and basics of Fecal 

Sludge Management was discussed and 

oriented in detail. Uniforms and Personal 

Protective Equipments (PPEs) were distributed to 

the sludge operators. 

Ÿ A team of HHIDS visited M/s Confident 

Engineering India Private Limited, Coimbatore to 

study and witness the operation of the 

Evaluated Receipt Settlement (ERS) machine 

and took samples of the same. The officials from 

M/s. Confident Engineering and M/s. JERS 

Technologies explained the process.   

Ÿ Around 60 government officials – Executive 

Officers, Sanitary Supervisors along with Sanitary 

workers from various local bodies of 

Kanyakumari District visited three of our key 

MSWM projects executed at Acharapakkam, 

Mamallapuram and Karunguzhi as part of an 

exposure cum study visit.  They also visited the 

FSTP facility at Karunguzhi. The visit was 

organized in two phases – Phase I and Phase II 

during the 13th & 20th of December 2019.  

Ÿ HHIDS official participated in the waste 

management exhibition organised by SRM 

University with the support of the Ministry of 

Human Resource and Development and 

participated as an expert in the panel for the 

Health and Solid Waste Management sector. 

Ÿ HHIDS official participated as a resource 

person during the NGOs training 

programme on Sustainable Development 

Goals 6.1 & 6.2 held at Madurai. It was a 

Fresh Action Network of South Asia, FANSA 

and VishwaYuva Kendra Delhi supported 

programme.

Ÿ HHIDS official participated as a resource 

person for the two-day workshop on waste 

management and social entrepreneurship 

conducted at PSG Institute of 

Management, Coimbatore.

Ÿ An annual training programme headed by 

Dr. Kalpana Sankar, Chairperson HHIDS was 

held on January 10, 2020 in 

Mamallapuram. The programme trained 

the HHIDS staff on project implementation 

and created a platform to discuss on new 

opportunities in the waste management 

sector.
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SPECIAL EPISODES

Public Transport Challenge 2019, a unique event, was organised 

to commemorate World Environment Day 2019 based on the 

theme of the year “Beat Air Pollution”. The initiative tried to 

convince people to use public transport for their daily 

commutation as an eco-friendly option and used social media 

as an important platform to communicate across various 

communities to reach out to the maximum number of people. 

Around 1100 people took up the challenge and posted their 

selfies on their Facebook pages.  The initiative served its purpose 

in creating awareness among people, especially city dwellers, 

about the consequences of comfort travelling and in what ways 

they can contribute to the environment.

Various other programs like Sand Sculpture, Tree Plantation, On-

site Composting, Cycle Rally, Public awareness campaigns were 

also conducted as part of the celebrations to sensitize the 

general public. 

Mangani Festival was celebrated on a grant scale on 

July 16, 2019.  Awareness programmes like rallies, picking 

litter campaign, and signature campaign along with 

pamphlet distribution were conducted to disseminate 

information on source segregation and environment 

conservation. Special task force along with 125 NSS 

students carried out the cleaning activity and collected 

around 28 tons of waste during the festive days. 

July 30, 2019, the auspicious new moon day of the month, 

AadiAmavasai saw more than 3 lakh devotees thronging at the 

temple city of Rameswaram.  Our SWM team conducted 

special mass cleaning activity engaging additional vehicles 

and manpower post the ceremonial offerings.  The occasion 

generated around 40 tons of waste in a single day, out of 

which, around 25 tons were cloth waste. HHIDS team handled 

the special day with ease alongside regular MSWM operations 

in the town. Prior to the occasion, Mr. K. Veera Raghava Rao, 

District Collector, Ramanathapuram, along with other govt. 

officials visited the four-car streets on 30th July and inspected 

the arrangements for the event.

In observance of the 150th Birth Anniversary Celebration of 

Mahatma Gandhiji, various 'Shramdaan' programmes as 

part of Swachh Hi Seva 2019 were organized at various 

local bodies. The programmes included litter picking 

campaigns, massive plastic waste collection drives, rallies 

and pledges for a plastic-free India.

‘Sugathara Thiruvizha’ (Sanitation festival) was organised at 
th thUthiramerur and Karunguzhi towns during 05  & 12  

January, 2019 respectively. Traditional art forms like 

Silambattam and Karagattam were exhibited, along with 

other programmes like drawing, painting and rangoli 

competitions. Historically significant coins were on display 

too during the festival. About 2800 people thronged the 

Sugathara Thiruvizhas, making them a success.
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On October 15, 2019, Global Hand Washing Day was 

observed at Karunguzhi Town panchayat in association 

with IIHS. Sanitisation programmes were conducted at 

various schools of the Karunguzhi Town Panchayat.  Around 

1455 students benefitted from the programme. Many 

leading Tamil dailies reported on the event. 

With the support of ONGC, Chennai, as part of the Swachhta Hi 

Seva 2019 initiative, under Avoid Single-use carry bag campaign, 

a beach cleaning drive was organized at Elliots Beach, Besant 

Nagar Chennai on October 20, 2019.  The programme was 

flagged off by Dr.K.S.Bhushan, ONGC, Group General Basin 

Manager, Krishna Godavari Basin in the presence of HHIDS 

Chairperson, Dr.KalpanaSankar. Around 200 members involving 

ONGC staff, Hand in Hand India group staff, volunteers from 

various corporates in all age groups took part in the beach 

cleaning initiative. Around 1.5 MT of mixed waste predominantly 

plastic and bottle waste was collected during the beach 

cleaning programme which was later handed over to the 

Corporation for safe disposal. Leading Tamil dailies Dinamalar, 

Dinamani and English news daily The Hindu reported on the 

beach cleaning programme conducted on October 20, 2019.

Airports Authority of India entrusted HHIDS to execute the 

Swachhata Hi Seva 2019 programme on the theme Avoid 

single-use plastic carry bags. Awareness programmes on 

source segregation were carried out at the airport staff 

quarters and for the drivers at the taxi stand. Massive mass 

cleaning drives were also conducted at the Pallavaram 

Friday market area. Airport staff volunteers and school 

children took part in the mass cleaning drive.  

World Toilet Day was observed on November 19, 2019 at 

Karunguzhi Town Panchayat. Environmentalist, Prof.Sultan 

Ismail was the special guest for the event.  Joint Director for 

DTP, Thiru.S.M.Malaiaman Thirumudikkari, Special officer, 

Karunguzhi Town Panchayat, Tmt.N.Latha, Tmt.Molly and 

Thiru. Ganesh Kumar from IIHS were the key dignitaries. 

Various competitions such as drawing, painting, essay 

writing, poetry were conducted prior to the event and 

prizes and certificates were distributed to the winners and 

participants.    

The Valedictory function for the Public Transport Challenge 

was held on November 22, 2019. The winner of the 

challenge, Mr.Manimaran received the prize, an eco-friendly 

electric scooter from Chairperson, Dr.Kalpana Sankar. Hailing 

from Uthiramerur town, Kancheepuram, Tamil Nadu, Mr. 

Manimaran is a differently-abled person working at the 

Uthiramerur Town Panchayat office.  To motivate child 

volunteers, participation certificates were distributed to the 

children who took part in the Elliot's Beach Cleaning Drive 

organized during October 20, 2019.
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Our Model 

“With a little bit of awareness and the participation of local people our environment can become much cleaner”

Swachh Bharat Abhiyan and Hand in Hand Inclusive Development & Services’ 
Municipal Solid Waste Management  (MSWM) –  A Correlation

The MSWM projects of HHIDS strive for maximum waste recovery through composting, recycling,  reuse, and aims at 

minimizing the waste being dumped in the landfills. Through the process, it also offers continuous employment to individuals 

from socially and economically disadvantaged groups. 

‘Recycle For Life’ – An Innovative 

Approach

l One Light Commercial Vehicle (LCV) is 

assigned for 800 households

l Four Green Friends for each LCV (3 for 
door to door waste collection; 1 for road 
sweeping)

l One Motivator for each LCV – to ensure 
source segregation of waste at households 
through exhortation 

l Separate bins in the LCV to store collected 
wastes from households 

Collected waste will be processed
separately in the Resource Recovery Park 
(RRP)

l Organic waste is converted into manure 
through composting method

l Recycle waste is compacted into bales and 

sent to recycle factory

l Food waste is converted into biogas for 

cooking or electricity generation

The fundamentals that are 

in correlation

l Information dissemination and knowledge 

sharing among people

l Active participation of people from different 

sections of the society

l Participation in cleanliness initiatives of 

government departments

l Target based and result oriented approach 

l Innate passion to make India clean

Waste to Energy Shredding of Recycle Waste Work Force

84% waste diversion & 

80% source segregation in 

Mamallapuram, Tamil Nadu

ONE UNIT
 

(800 Households) 
Four Green Friends (sanitary workers)

(3 Green Friends engaged in 
door to door collection of waste; 
1 Green Friend in road sweeping)

One Motivator

One Driver

Hand in Hand’s MSWM project model - 

‘Recycle for Life’ will expedite 'Swachh Bharat 

Abhiyan’ based on a result oriented, time 

bound  approach in a period of TWO years

Turning of Bio Waste Degradation Process Compost Harvesting

57 58

Two Bins & One Bag System



Step by Step Approach

1

2

3

7

6

5

4
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Newspaper Clippings 
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Core Competencies 

Parisutham Vedamuthu

N Ragupathy

C Ravikumar

T Chenthil Kumar

A Ganapathy

B Kannan

R Dhanya

N Narayanan

Raghul Madhaiyan

C Jalasayanan

Key Executives

Experienced Resource Personnel to Train Stakeholders

Technical Expertise for Project Consultation 
and Implementation

Education and Communication Activities

Experience in Environment Related Information 

Leverage Synergies among the Community, 

Local Government and NGOs 

Cooperation with National and International Partners

Expertise in Construction and Installation of Biogas Plants 

Chief General Manager

General Manager – HR

Senior Project Manager

Senior Project Manager

Project Manager

Project Manager

Manager – Accounts

Assistant General Manager

Assistant General Manager

Senior Project Manager

V Kannadasan Project Manager

N Arumugam Project Manager

B Balasubramanian Project Manager

N Gopisankar Project Manager

K Prabhuraman

G Manickamoorthy

Consultant - Admin 

Assistant Manager - Accounts
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Partners and Donors

Acharapakkam Town Panchayat, Kancheepuram District, Tamil Nadu 

Airports Authority of India (AAI) 

ACC Limited 

Akhod Village Panchayat, Bharuch District, Gujarat 

Ahmedabad Municipal Corporation, Gujarat

Arihant Escapade Flat Owners Association, Thoraipakkam, Chennai 

Bargarh Municipality, Bargarh District, Odisha 

Bharat Heavy Electricals Limited (BHEL), Hyderabad 

Cantonment Board – St. Thomas Mount cum Pallavaram, Chennai 

Chengam Town Panchayat, Tiruvannamalai District, Tamil Nadu 

Chitlapakkam Town Panchayat, Kancheepuram District, Tamil Nadu 

Daimler India Commercial Vehicles Pvt. Ltd

Dewas Municipal Corporation, Madhya Pradesh 

Directorate of Rural Development, Tamil Nadu 

Directorate of Town Panchayats, Tamil Nadu 

District Administration, Kancheepuram District, Tamil Nadu 

District Administration, Ramanathapuram District, Tamil Nadu 

District Administration, Karaikal District, Puducherry Union Territory 

District Rural Development Agency, Kancheepuram, Tamil Nadu 

Greater Chennai Corporation 

Harola Urban Village, Noida, Uttar Pradesh 

HCL Foundation 

Indian Institute for Human Settlements 

Indian Institute of Technology Hyderabad  

Jamul Nagar Palika, Durg District, Chhattisgarh 

Karaikal Municipality, Puducherry Union Territory 

KaroSambhav, New Delhi 

Karunguzhi Town Panchayat, Kancheepuram District, Tamil Nadu 

Keeranur Town Panchayat, Pudukottai District, Tamil Nadu 

Kottakuppam Town Panchayat, Viluppuram District, Tamil Nadu 

Kundrathur Town Panchayat, Kancheepuram District, Tamil Nadu 

Local Administration Department, Puducherry Union Territory 

Madambakkam Town Panchayat, Kancheepuram District, Tamil Nadu 

Mamallapuram Special Grade Town Panchayat, Kancheepuram District, Tamil Nadu 

Mangadu Town Panchayat, Kancheepuram District, Tamil Nadu 

Moraiya Village Panchayat, Ahmedabad District, Gujarat 

Mudichur Village Panchayat, Kancheepuram District, Tamil Nadu 

Mudukulathur Town Panchayat, Ramanathapuram District, Tamil Nadu

Nandivaram - Guduvancheri Town Panchayat, Kancheepuram District, Tamil Nadu 

National Stock Exchange Limited, Mumbai

Oil and Natural Gas Corporation Limited (ONGC) 

Perungalathur Town Panchayat, Kancheepuram District, Tamil Nadu 

Polur Town Panchayat, Tiruvannamalai District, Tamil Nadu 

PPG Asian Paints Pvt. Ltd 

Rameswaram Municipality, Ramanathapuram District, Tamil Nadu 

Sindri Municipal Corporation, Dhanbad District, Jharkhand 

Sricity – Integrated Business City, Andhra Pradesh 

SRM University, Kattankulathur, Chennai 

Sriperumbudur Town Panchayat, Kancheepuram District, Tamil Nadu 

Suva Village Panchayat, Bharuch District, Gujarat 

TECHNIP- FMC 

Thangachimadam Village Panchayat, Ramanathapuram District, Tamil Nadu 

The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (DTCC)  

Uthiramerur Town Panchayat, Kancheepuram District, Tamil Nadu 

Vivekananda Kendra, Kanyakumari, Tamil Nadu
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SNB ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

To the Members of M/s. Hand In Hand Inclusive 
Development and Services

Report on the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial 

statements of Hand in Hand Inclusive Development 

and Services ("the company"'), which comprise the 

balance sheet as at March 31, 2020, and the 

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year then 

ended, and notes to the financial statements, 

including a summary of significant accounting 

policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and 

according to the explanations given to us. the 

aforesaid financial statements give the information 

required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act") in the 

manner so required and give a true and fair view in 

conformity with the accounting principles 

generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of 

the Company as at March 31, 2020 and its surplus 

for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the 

standards on auditing specified under section 143 

(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities 

under those Standards are further described in the 

auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial 

statements section of our report. We are 

independent of the Company in accordance with 

the code of ethics issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India together with the 

ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit 

of the financial statements under the provisions of 

the Act and the rules there under, and we have 

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 

accordance with these requirements and the 

code of ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have 

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our opinion.

Information other than the Financial statements 
and auditors' report thereon

The Company's board of directors is responsible for 

the preparation of the other information. The other 

information comprises the information included in 

the Board's Report including Annexures to Board's 

Report, Business Responsibility Report but does not 

include the financial statements and our auditor's 

report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not 

cover the other information and we do not express 

any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial 

statements, our responsibility is to read the other 

information and, in doing so, consider whether the 

other information is materially inconsistent with the 

standalone financial statements or our knowledge 

obtained during the course of our audit or 

otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we 

conclude that there is a material misstatement of 

this other information; we are required to report 

that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Management's responsibility for the financial 
statements

The Company's board of directors are responsible 

for the matters stated in section 134 (5) of the Act 

with respect to the preparation of these financial 

statements that give a true and fair view of the 

financial position and financial performance of the 

Company in accordance with the accounting 

principles generally accepted in India, including 

the accounting standards specified under section 

133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes 

maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Act for 

safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 

preventing and detecting frauds and other 

irregularities; selection and application of 

appropriate accounting policies; making 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 

prudent: and design, implementation and 

Independent Auditors Report 
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maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, 

that were operating effectively for ensuring the 

accuracy and completeness of the accounting 

records, relevant to the preparation and presentation 

of the financial statement that give a true and fair view 

and are free from material misstatement whether due 

to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is 

responsible for assessing the Company's ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 

applicable, matters related to going concern and 

using the going concern basis of accounting unless 

management either intends to liquidate the Company 

or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative 

but to do so.

The board of directors are also responsible for 

overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial 
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance 

about whether the financial statements as a whole are 

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 

or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes 

our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 

assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 

conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect 

a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 

can arise from fraud or error and are considered 

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 

reasonably be expected to influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 

professional judgment and maintain professional 

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

•    Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement 

of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 

error, design and perform audit procedures 

responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 

that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 

one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 

col lus ion, forgery,  intent ional omiss ions,  

misrepresentations, or the override of internal 

control.

•     Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant 

to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 

are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 

143(3)(I) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also 

responsible for expressing our opinion on whether 

the company has adequate internal financial 

controls system in place and the operating 

effectiveness of such controls.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting 

policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures 

made by management.

• Conclude on the appropr iateness  of  

management's use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence 

obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 

related to events or conditions that may cast 

significant doubt on the Company's ability to 

continue as a going concern. If we conclude 

that a material uncertainty exists, we are 

required to draw attention in our auditor's report 

to the related disclosures in the financial 

statements or, i f  such disclosures are 

inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 

conclusions are based on the audit evidence 

obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. 

However, future events or conditions may cause 

the Company to cease to continue as a going 

concern.

•    Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and 

content of the financial statements, including 

the disclosures, and whether the financial 

s tatements  represent  the  under ly ing  

transactions and events in a manner that 

achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the 

standalone financial statements that, individually or 

in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic 

decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of 

the financial statements may be influenced. We 

consider quantitative materiality and qualitative 

factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work 

and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to 

evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements 

in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with 

governance regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and 

significant audit findings, including any significant 

deficiencies in internal control that we identify 

during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance 

with a statement that we have complied with 

re levant ethical  requi rements  regarding 

independence, and to communicate with them all 

relationships and other matters that may reasonably 

be thought to bear on our independence, and 

where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those 

charged with governance, we determine those 

matters that were of most significance in the audit of 

the financial statements of the current period and 
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are therefore the key audit matters. We describe 

these matters in our auditor's report unless law or 

regulation precludes public disclosure about the 

matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 

we determine that a matter should not be 

communicated in our report because the adverse 

consequences of doing so would reasonably be 

expected to outweigh the public interest benefits 

of such communication.

Report  on Other Legal  and Regulatory 
Requirements

1.     As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act. based 

on our audit we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the 

information and explanations which to the 

best of our knowledge and belief were 

necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b)  In our opinion, proper books of account as 

required by law have been kept by the 

Company so far as it appears from our 

examination of those books

(c)   The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit 

and Loss dealt with by this Report are in 

agreement with the books of account

(d)   The aforesaid financial statements comply with 

the Accounting Standards specified under 

Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e)  On the basis of the written representations 

received from the directors as on 31st March, 

2020 taken on record by the Board of 

Directors, none of the directors is disqualified 

as on 31st March, 2020 from being appointed 

as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the 

Act.

(f)  According to information and explanation 

given to us and based on our audit the 

following material weakness has been 

identified as at March 31, 2020; 

a) The IT controls are vulnerable to security

     In our opinion, except for the possible effects of 

the material weakness described above on the 

achievement of the objectives of the control 

criteria, the Company has maintained in all 

material respects, adequate internal financial 

controls system over financial reporting and 

such internal financial controls over financial 

reporting were operating effectively as at 

March 31, 2020, based on the internal control 

over financial reporting criteria established by 

the Company considering the essential 

components of internal control stated in the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 

Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

   We have considered material weakness 

identified and reported above in determining 

the nature, timing and extent of audit tests 

applied in our audit of the March 31, 2020 

financial statements of the Company and the 

material weakness do not affect our opinion on 

the financial statements of the Company.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included 

in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 

11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 

2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 

information and according to the explanations 

given to us:

I)  The Company does not have any pending 

litigations as on 31st March 2020 which would 

impact its financial position.

ii) The Company did not have any long-term 

contracts including derivative contracts for 

which there were any material foreseeable 

losses.

iii) There are no amounts to be transferred to the 

Investor Education and Protection Fund by the 

Company.

2. The requirement of the Companies (Auditor's 

Report) Order 2016 ("the Order"), issued by the 

Central government of India in terms of sub-

section (11) of section 143 of the Companies 

Act 2013, does not apply to the Company. 

Accordingly we have not commented upon 

the same.

For SNB ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 015682N

Sridhar R
Partner

Membership No: 028317

UDIN : 21028317AAAAAA2487

Chennai

Date: 28th December 2020 
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    PARTICULARS Note No. As at 31st March 2020    As at 31st March 2019   
                      

A EQUITY AND LIABILITIES     

1  Shareholders’ Funds     

  (a) Share capital  1     3,100,000 3,100,000

  (b) Reserves and surplus 2              43,403,677           36,226,343 

                         46,503,677                    39,326,343      

2 Share application money pending allotment

3 Current liabilities

  (a)  Short-term borrowings 3                5,251,530   4,824,226 

  (b)  Trade payables 4 - -  

                      i) MSME   

                 ii) Others                 17,968,520   11,653,506

  (c) Other current liabilities 5            47,142,778         22,523,925 

                 70,362,828        39,001,657  

  TOTAL              116,866,505    78,328,000  

B ASSETS     

1  Non-current assets     

  (a) Fixed assets 6  

  (i) Tangible assets                     1,513,995   725,908 

  (b) Long term loans and advances 7              11,531,451           11,244,160 

  (c) Other non current Assets   -                    -   

                 13,045,446      11,970,068  

 2 Current assets     

  (a) Trade receivables 8              51,485,290     46,011,693 

  (b) Cash and Bank Balance  9              36,163,809    13,177,241  

  (c)  Short-term loans and advances 10               14,184,060            3,991,930  

  (d) Other current assets 11               1,987,900              3,177,068  

                103,821,059   66,357,933         

                                                  TOTAL             116,866,505 78,328,000    

      

 Significant accounting policies and Notes  18

        forming part of the financial statement

stBALANCE SHEET AS AT 31  MARCH, 2020

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our Report of even date.

 

For SNB ASSOCIATES                                                                     

 Chartered Accountants    

Firm Reg No: 015682N     

                       

 Sridhar R

Partner

Membership No: 028317

UDIN : 21028317AAAAAA2487 

Place :  Chennai

 Date  :  28-12-2020

Hand in Hand Inclusive Development and Services 
CIN: U7 4900TN2008NPL067068

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

-Sd-

Dr. Kalpana Sankar

Chairman 

-Sd-

N. Amuthasekaran

Managing Director 
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                              PARTICULARS Note         Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.

  No.       2019-20 2018-19 

       INCOME      

 Income from Charitable Operations  12        188,682,381   182,049,428  

 Grants & Donation  13              23,092,486   4,284,407

 Other Income    14  1,024,642   219,371   

 Total Income    212,799,509   186,553,206  

 EXPENDITURE

 Employee Cost   15   63,456,666   45,492,115   

 Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 6                     710,620   297,228 

        Finance Cost 16                   626,912    448,816   

 Program  Expenses 17 B   126,499,245  120,294,504   

 Administrative Expenses  17 A   14,328,732   11,855,620    

 Total Expenditure     205,622,174  178,388,283  

 Surplus /(Deficit) for the year         

  Tax Expenses     7,177,334   8,164,923  

 Net Surplus /(Deficit) for the year  

 Carried to Balance Sheet                        7,177,334   8,164,923 

 Significant accounting policies and Notes forming 

 Part of the financial statement      18 

This is the Statement of Income and Expenditure referred to in our Report of even date.

 

For SNB ASSOCIATES                                                                     

 Chartered Accountants    

Firm Reg No: 015682N     

                       

 Sridhar R

Partner

Membership No: 028317

UDIN : 21028317AAAAAA2487 

Place :  Chennai

 Date  :  28-12-2020 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

-Sd-

Dr. Kalpana Sankar

Chairman 

-Sd-

N. Amuthasekaran

Managing Director 

Hand in Hand Inclusive Development and Services
CIN: U7 4900TN2008NPL067068

STINCOME AND EXPENDITURE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH 2020
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(ii) Details of shareholders                                  31st March 2020                31st March 2019

Name of the Shareholders        No.of Shares         % of holding        No.of Shares   % of holding 

Dr. Kalpana Sankar                                           67,501  21.77%  5,000      1.61%

Dr. Jeyaseelan & Mr. N. Amuthasekaran  -  -  2,500      0.81%

Mr. N. Amuthasekaran   72,499  23.39%  72,499    23.38%

Dr. Jeyaseelan                                                 -   1      0.01%

Mr L. Muralidharan  50,000  16.13%  50,000    16.13%

Ayyampettai Self help Trust  50,000  16.13%  50,000    16.13%

PeriyaKancheepuram  Self help Trust  50,000  16.13%  50,000    16.13%

Mageswaran. M  -    0.00%  60,000    19.35%

Kannan. N  20,000  6.45%  20,000      6.45%

Total     310,000    310,000  100.00%

(I) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the 
reporting period:

Particulars       As at     As at

        31st March 2020   31st March 2019

Equity shares

         Equity Shares at the beginning of the year                                   3,100,000    3,100,000

Add : Fresh Issue of shares    

Add : ESOP                                         -

Add : Bonus shares                                         -      

Less: Buy back of shares                                         -   

Equity shares at the end of the year                                 3,100,000                     3,100,000 

Hand in Hand Inclusive Development and Services 
CIN: U7 4900TN2008NPL067068

stNOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2020

                    As at   As at 
 NOTE       PARTICULARS  31st March 2020   31st March 2019
  No.  
    Amount in Rs  Amount in Rs 

 1 SHARE CAPITAL  

  Authorised Share Capital                   20,000,000               20,000,000 
  2,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10 each

  
  Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up

  3,10,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10 each                    3,100,000                  3,100,000

  Less: Calls in Arrears

 TOTAL                     3,100,000               3,100,000
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 NOTE                                  PARTICULARS  As at   As at 

  No.     31st March 2020   31st March 2019 

    Amount in Rs.   Amount in Rs. 

 2 RESERVES AND SURPLUS  

  (a) General Reserve  

          Opening balance   36,226,343  28,061,420

  Add: Transfer from Income&Expenditure A/c  

  Less: Utilised / transferred during the year  

   

  (b)  Surplus/(Deficit) in Income&Expenditure A/c  

  Opening Balance  

  Add: Surplus/(Deficit) during the year  7,177,334   8,164,923 

  Less: Transfer to General Reserve  

  Less: Depreciation  

  TOTAL 43,403,677 36,226,343 

 3 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS  

  Secured Loan  

  HDFC Bank - Cash credit   5,251,530   4,824,226 

  (Secured by Book debts)  

   

  Un Secured Loan  

  Loans & Advances from Related Parties  -     -   

  TOTAL 5,251,530   4,824,226

   

 4 TRADE PAYABLES  

  Payable -SHG  12,574,086   7,547,903 

  Trade Creditors - Payable  5,394,434   4,105,603  

  TOTAL  17,968,520   11,653,506 

   

 5 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES  

 (I) Statutory  

  TDS Payable  210,773   146,333

  Social Benefit Payable (PF/ESI)  800,869   731,580

  GST  Payable  -     -

   

 (iI) Other Liabilities  

  Income Received in advance   8,342,202   9,329,860

  (un earned income)  

  Advance from Customer  31,186,820   5,652,213 

  Employee Related Dues  2,410,782   2,911,142 

  Others  4,191,332  3,752,798   

   TOTAL  47,142,778   22,523,925            

Hand in Hand Inclusive Development and Services 
CIN: U7 4900TN2008NPL067068

stNOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2020
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Hand in Hand Inclusive Development and Services 
CIN: U7 4900TN2008NPL067068

stNOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2020

                          As at   As at 
NOTE         PARTICULARS      31st March 2020  31st March 2019
   No.  
     Amount in Rs.   Amount in Rs. 
   

 7 LONG TERM LOAN AND ADVANCES  

  Security Deposit:  

  Unsecured considered good             3,549,407         3,276,581 

  TDS  Receivable            7,982,044        7,967,579 

  TOTAL         11,531,451         11,244,160 

   

 8 TRADE RECEIVABLES  

  Due more than six months  

      Considered good            2,190,173          2,411,556 

      Considered doubtful              4,413,463        915,815 

      Less: provision for doubtful debts             (2,400,879)        (910,878) 

              4,202,757        2,416,493

  

  Other receivables  

      Considered good         47,282,533      43,595,200 

      Considered doubtful  -             - 

      Less: provision for doubtful debts  -          -

           47,282,533      43,595,200  

  TOTAL         51,485,290     46,011,693 

   

 9 CASH AND BANK  BALANCES  

  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  

  Cash On Hand                         19,367           36   

  Balances with Scheduled Banks in Current Account             31,834,408         8,867,171 

  Total (A)            31,853,775         8,867,207 

   

  Other Bank Balances  

  Balances with banks to the extent held as guarantees            4,310,034         4,310,034 

  Total (B)            4,310,034         4,310,034 

  TOTAL          36,163,809       13,177,241 

   

 10 SHORT TERM LOANS &  ADVANCES   

  Unsecured ,considered good, unless otherwise stated  

   Supplier Advances               2,987,739           328,934 

   Advances to employees                  685,199           428,228

   Security deposits                6,897,319       2,546,119

   GST  Credit               3,613,803          688,649   

  Total            14,184,060        3,991,930 

   

 11 OTHER CURRENT ASSESTS  

   Interest Receivable               1,064,981           437,686 

   Unbilled revenue                 852,979   2,640,543  

   Prepaid Insurance                  69,940             98,839 

    TOTAL             1,987,900        3,177,068   
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   NOTE                              As at   As at 
      PARTICULARS   No.       31st March 2020    31st March 2019

   Amount in Rs   Amount in Rs    

 12 Income from Charitable operation   

   Income from SWM  Charitable Activities    187,956,496   178,320,762 

   Income from Community Managed Drinking water scheme        264,385       3,628,666

   Income from Bio Gas Activity         461,500        100,000 

                                                                                                                                       188,682,381   182,049,428

 13 Grant & Donations   

   Grant       23,089,486      4,281,906 

   Donations              3,000       2,501

       23,092,486    4,284,407 

 14 Other  Income   

   Bank Interest      1,024,642   219,371

       1,024,642 219,371

     

 15 Employee Cost   

   Office Staff Salary   55,389,602  38,754,643 

   Contribution to PF  & ESI   5,037,311   4,434,224 

   Staff Welfare Expenses  3,029,753   2,303,248

                                                                                                                    63,456,666   45,492,115

 16 Finance cost   

   Interest on loan/HDFC/Sarvam   626,912 448,816 

                                                                                                                     626,912  448,816 

 17 A Administrative Expenses:   

  Bank Charges   112,456 50,977

   Payment To Auditors :  

   towards  Statutory  Audit fee  250,000   250,000 

   towards  reimbursement of expenses  

   Payment To Auditors - Tax Audit     70,000

  General Expenses 98,637  22,713 

  Rent 1,443,485  962,923

  Computer Maintenance 99,689   74,707

  Postage & Courier Expenses  85,537  57,530 

  Professional Charges/Consultancy Charges  414,772   428,172

  Office Maintenance  356,619   201,876

  Meeting Expenses  35,148  70,454 

  Communication  634,232  523,252 

  Printing & Stationery 1,536,508  1,505,675 

  Travelling & Conveyance 3,790,824   3,889,279

  Tricycle Maintenance  274,096  395,744

  Bad debt written off/ Provision for Doubtful Debts  1,490,001  1,377,080 

  Vehicle Maintenance   3,580,511   1,861,507 

  Electricity Charges 126,217   113,731 

   14,328,732 11,855,620
   

 

Hand in Hand Inclusive Development and Services 
CIN: U7 4900TN2008NPL067068

stNOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2020
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                          As at   As at 
     NOTE         PARTICULARS  31st March 2020   31st March 2019
     No.  
     Amount in Rs.      Amount in Rs. 
   

  NOTE  A  -  OTHER  PROGRAM  EXPENSES:  

  Towards  Solid Waste  Management :  

  Petrol Diesel Cost  1,176,027  956,135 

  Programme Expenses SWM  87,771,850   84,182,507 

  Training Expenses  1,080,759   1,945,915 

  Material Purchase  947,898  1,024,774

  Medical Camp Expenses  151,460  115,810 

  Programme Expenses  29,869,273   25,830,760 

  Tractor Hire Charges  3,419,250   3,583,175 

  Cow Dung Purchases  - 

  Vehicle  Expenses  -  

   124,416,517   117,639,075 

  

  Towards  Community Managed Drinking Water :  

          Program  Expenses  1,731,017   889,225 

    1,731,017   889,225

          Towards Bio Gas Activity:  

  Programme Expenses  -     -

  Bio Gas Expenses  351,711   17,701

    351,711   17,701

  NOTE  B  -  Community  Development  Activity :  

  GAJA Cyclone Relief  Expenses   978,436 

  Green Friend Shed Construction   700,000

  Pasumai Vikatan Programme  70,066 

  World Enviornment Day Awareness - -  

    -  1,748,502

    NOTE                                   As at   As at 
      PARTICULARS     No.         31st March 2020    31st March 2019

        Amount in Rs.   Amount in Rs.    

 17 B Other Program expenses:  (Refer Note A below)  

     towards Solid Waste Management program  124,416,517   117,639,075

     towards community  managed Drinking water Scheme       1,731,017   889,225 

     towards bio gas programme           351,711    17,701 

  Community Development   Activity  (Refer Note B below)  

  Expenses    -    1,748,502

                                                                                                                        126,499,245   120,294,504

                                                                                             TOTAL                140,827,976                132,150,124

Hand in Hand Inclusive Development and Services 
CIN: U7 4900TN2008NPL067068

stNOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2020
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Hand in Hand Inclusive Development and Services 
CIN: U7 4900TN2008NPL067068

stCASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31  2020
(All amounts are in Indian rupees unless otherwise stated)

                                   PARTICULARS         31-Mar-20    31-Mar-19

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Revenue from Activities    181,824,648   171,662,046  

Grants received towards Corpus funds  -  - 

Program and Admin Expenses for above activities    (207,170,115)  (167,991,185)

Project and Other Program Recovery      

Donations received   23,092,486   8,524,255 

Advances received/settled for programme activities   25,882,731 1,782,990

Other Income  -  -   

Income tax refund received during the year

Net cash from/ used in operating activities    23,629,750   10,412,126 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES    -   

Purchase of fixed assets and payments made for     (1,219,708)  (707,368)

Proceeds from Sale of fixed assets  - -   

Investment in Fixed Deposits    -  (6,480,455)

Interest received from investment of Corpus Funds  - -   

Interest received from investment of Revenue Grants  - -     

Net cash from Investing Activities    (1,219,708)  (7,187,823)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES   

Investment in Bank /Loan     427,303  (374,216) 

Issuance of equity shares    -   

Interest received on Bank Deposit   149,223  219,371  

Capital expenditure    -   

Net cash (used in) / from Financing Activities    576,526  (154,845)  

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents    22,986,568   3,069,458 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year   8,867,207   5,797,713  

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year     31,853,775  8,867,171
 

For SNB ASSOCIATES                                                                     

 Chartered Accountants    

Firm Reg No: 015682N     

                       

 Sridhar R

Partner

Membership No: 028317

UDIN : 21028317AAAAAA2487 

Place :  Chennai

 Date  :  28-12-2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

-Sd-

Dr. Kalpana Sankar

Chairman 

-Sd-

N. Amuthasekaran

Managing Director 
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